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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members
IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Sixth Annual Report together with

Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2021 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

FINANCIAL & OPERATING RESULTS

(a) FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’'s financial performance for the year ended on
summarized below:

March 31, 2021 is

Financial Year Financial Year
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(Amountin Rs.) (Amount in Rs.)
Revenue from Operations 2,11,80,88,691 1,65,65,70,235
Other Income 73,33,104 46,93,141
Total Income 2,12,54,21,795 1,66,12,63,376
Total Ep'(pe’alndlture other than Finance Cost, 1,38,59,97.600 115,94.99271
Depreciation and Tax
Operating Pr.ofi_t / (Loss) before Finance 73,94,24,195 50,17,64,105
Cost, Depreciation and Tax
Less: Interest and Finance Charges 15,85,51,758 9,66,58,586
Less: Depreciation and amortization 12,00,01,055 9.18,05,715
_expenses - i :
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 46,08,71,382 31,32,99,804
Less: Provision for Taxation 10,96,11,269 10,23,80,797 |
Profit for the period 35,12,60,113 21,09,19,007
Other comprehensive
_income/(Expenses) [net of tax] - e
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit 175,675 (3,98,053)
or (Loss), net of tax
Total comp!rehenswe income/(Expenses) 35,10,84,438 21,05,20,953
for the period
Earning per equity share 12.47 8.61

(b) OPERATING RESULTS

During the year, your Company has continued to create CGD infrastructure in the
Geographical Areas (GAs) of Banaskantha District in the State of Gujarat, Fatehgarh
Sahib District in the State of Punjab.
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Backed by the robust infrastructure and increased CNG Stations rollout during the
year under review, the Company generated a Profit after Tax of Rs. 3512.60 lacs (PY:
Rs. 2109.19 lacs) with gross turnover of Rs. 16565.70 lacs (PY: 16565.70 lacs).

(c) CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company for the Financial Year
2020-21 are prepared in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder. The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on the basis of audited financial statements of your
Company and joint control entities, as approved by their respective Board of
Directors. The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Auditors’ Report
form part of this Annual Report.

(d) DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources for future growth of the Company, the Board of
Directors has not recommended dividend for the year ended March 31, 2021.

(e) TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year
under review.

CGD PROJECTS OVERVIEW

Your Company was awarded authorizations by Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory
Board (PNGRB), Government of India to implement two City Gas Distribution (CGD)
Projects under 6th round of City Gas Distribution bidding and one City Gas Distribution
(CGD) Project under 9th round of City Gas Distribution bidding. This includes:

» Banaskantha Geographical Area vide letter dated 1st July 2016.

e Fatehgarh Sahib Geographical Area in the state of Punjab vide letter dated 5th July
2016,

* Diu & Gir Somnath Geographical Area vide letter dated September 25, 2018.

The Company has set up critical infrastructure in the above geographical areas which
comprises:

- City Gate Station

- Mother CNG Station

- CNG Stations (Online and Daughter Booster)

- Last mile connectivity for Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Segments

- Steel and MDPE Pipeline infrastructure at various Demand Centers within the
Geographical area

The Project is being funded through mix of Debt and Equity. As on 31.03.2021, the total
debt outstanding from Banks is Rs. 14664.93 lacs (PY: Rs. 12943.39 lacs). The debt
repayment shall start from Qtr-2 of FY 2021-22 in 40 structured quarterly installmen
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Your company has a target of reaching Rs. 2000 crores turnover by 2030 by
implementing an integrated comprehensive business plan.

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Due to the pandemic led lockdown, the demand side was impacted as overall demand for
energy decreased due to reduction in the number of vehicles on roads and industries
being shut across the country.

Your company has proactively geared itself up to sustain its business in this pandemic
situation and volumes have already surpassed the pre-Covid levels.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 63,99,89,030/-.
During the year under review, the Company has issued 18,74,741 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each, and 34,14,441 10% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The
Company has only one class of equity shares having par value to Rs. 10/- each. During
the year under review, the Company has neither issued shares with differential voting
rights nor granted stock options or sweat equity.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2020 is available on the Company’s website at
wWww.irmenergy.com.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loan, guarantee
or security are not.applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged.in providing
infrastructural facilities which is exempt under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of investment made during the year under review are disclosed in financial
statements.

PARTICU S OF CONTRACTS OR AR GEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIE

All Related Party transactions that were entered during the year under review were on
arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business. Accordingly, the disclosure of
related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,
2013 in Form AOC 2 is not applicable. Your directors draw attention of the Members to
Note no. 33 of the Standalone Financial Statements which sets out related party
transaction disclosures.

DEPOSITS

Pursuant to Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not accepted the
deposits during the year under review.

Nehru Nagat,
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HOLDING COMPANY
IRM Energy Private Limited is a subsidiary of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Limited.
AS E COMPANIES

The Company has two Joint Control Entities as on March 31, 2021. There has been no
material change in the nature of the business of the entities. Following are the two joint
control entities:

(a) Farm Gas Private Limited (FGPL)

FGPL incorporated on December 09, 2019 is engaged in the business of storage,
supply, distribution, sale and to otherwise deal in Compressed Natural Gas (CNG),
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG), Bio Fuels or any other gaseous fuels and ancillary
services on commercial basis.

(b) Venuka Polymers Private Limited (VPPL)
VPPL incorporated on December 19, 2019 is engaged in the business of
manufacturing, supply, storage, trading, distribution, sale and to otherwise deal in

plastic pipes, HDPE and LDPE pipes, conduit for fibre optic cables, etc.

The highlights w.r.t joint control entities as on March 31, 2021 is as under:

— st | R
Year 2020-21 2020-21
Country of Incorporation India India
% of ownership interest 50% 50%

i Current Assets i . 5,66,91,738 . 4,83,06,296
Non Current Assets 6,02,58,815 8,53,32,341
Current Liabilities 34,27 548 2,62,68,037
Non Current Liabilities
Income
Profit/(Loss) for the year (18,06,414) (10,61,568) |
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive [ncome -

Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments 8,08,04,779 14,79,288

Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind - AS 110 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial Statements presented
by the Company include the financial statements of its associates.

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of
associates in the prescribed form AOC - 1 is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure

Nehru Nagat,
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-A and forms part of this report. The Audited Consolidated financial statements together
with Auditors’ Report forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)

(b)

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is led by the Chairman and comprises of seven
Directors as on March 31, 2021.

During the year under review, Mr. Anandmohan Tiwari (DIN: 02986260) who was
appointed as Additional Director for a period of five years effective from June 14,
2020, his appointment was regularized by the members in the fifth Annual General
Meeting held on September 19, 2020. The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Tiwari
possesses requisite qualification, experience, expertise and holds high standards of

integrity.

Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are
disqualified from appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Director) Rules, 2014, the
Independent Directors have submitted their declaration of independence stating that
they meet the criteria of independence as set out in the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company, Dr. Rajiv I Modi (DIN: 01394558) is liable to retire by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends the re-
appointment of above director for your approval.

K agerial Personnel

Mr. Karan Kaushal, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Harshal Anjaria, Chief Finance Officer,
and Ms. Shikha Jain, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of your
Company in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51), 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
for the time being in force).

During the year under review, Mr. Karan Kaushal who was appointed as Manager of
the Company for three years w.e.f. July 13, 2017 was re-designated as Chief Executive
Officer w.e.f. July 13, 2020.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business
strategies, policies and other issues. A calendar of Board / Committee meetings for the
year is prepared and circulated to the Directors well in advance to enable them to plan
their schedule for effective participation in the meetings. During the year, four meetings
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of the Board of Directors were convened. The intervening gap between two consecutive
meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

Name of Director Date of Board Meeting Total No.
i of
09.07.20| 11.08.20| 25.11.20| 26.02.21 | Meetings
(R _ attended
Mr. Maheswar Sahu v v vV v 4/4
Dr. Rajiv I. Modi v v v v 4/4
Mr. Amitabha Banerjee v v V v 4/4
Mr. Vinod Jain v v v v 4/4
Mr. Badri Mahapatra N v x v 3/4
Mr. C K Gopal v v v v 4/4
Mr. Anandmohan Tiwari V v N N 4/4

INDEPENDENT DIRECORS'S MEETING

The Independent Directors met on March 18, 2021 without the attendance of Non-
independent Directors and the members of the Management. The independent directors
reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as whole, the
performance of the Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
- Audit Committee:
The Board has constituted the Audit Committee to review of internal controls and
audit findings, review of financial statements, appointment of auditors amongst other
responsibilities as contained in the Terms of Reference.
During the year under review, the Board of Directors, reconstituted the composition

of Audit Committee by appointing Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari as the member of the
Audit Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2020.

The Composition of Audit Committee effective from June 14, 2020 is detailed below:

' Sr | Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1 Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Chairman
2. Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director | Member

Chambers,
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- Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to
recommend the recruitments of MDs, WTDs, Independent Directors, KMPs, as &
when applicable to the Company and to do all the acts pursuant to provisions of
Section 178 as per Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors reconstituted the composition
of Nomination & Remuneration Committee by appointing Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari
as the member and Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f.
June 14, 2020.

The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee effective June 14, 2020
is detailed below:

Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership

1 Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director Chairman

Zi Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Member

3. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director | Member

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder. This Policy is available on the website of the Company i.e.
www.irmenergy.com

- Management Committee:

The Board has constituted the Management Committee to oversee the day to day
management affairs of the Company.

The composition of the Management Committee is detailed below:

Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. ] - Membership
1. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-executive Director | Chairman

| 2 Mr. Amitabha Banerjee Non-executive Director | Member

| 3. Mr. Badri Mahapatra Non-executive Director | Member
4. Mr. Vinod Jain Non-executive Director | Member

- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the
CSR Committee to formulate CSR policy, review and recommend to the Board amount
of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

The composition of the CSR Committee is detailed below: e
7, Heri
Chambers,
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Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-executive Director | Chairman
2. Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Vinod Jain Non-executive Director | Member

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed to this report as Annexure -B.

The CSR policy is available on your Company’s website www.irmenergy.com

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors
state that:

i. the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and there are no material departures from the said standards;

ii. reasonable and prudent accounting policies have been used in preparation of the
financial statements and that they have been consistently applied and that
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made in respect of items
not concluded by the year end, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit for the year ended on that date;

iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

iv. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v. proper internal financial controls were in place and were adequate and operating
effectively; and

vi. Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, in consultation
with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework
containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
Company, its Committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

The annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each Director has
been carried out for the financial year 2020-21 in accordance with the framework.

1, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehru Napar,
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K MANAGEMENT F EWORK

The Company has in place a Risk Management framework for a systematic approach to
control risks. The Risk Management process is appropriately handled by functional heads
/ business process owners. As on date, the Company do not envisage risks which could
threaten the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company maintains appropriate systems of internal controls, including monitoring
procedures, to ensure that all assets and investments are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide
for adequate checks and balances and are meant to ensure that all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. '

The Internal Auditors review the efficiency and effectiveness of these systems and
procedures. The Internal Auditors submit their Report periodically which is placed
before and reviewed by the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower
Policy in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to provide a formal
mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The policy of vigil mechanism is available on the
Company’s website www.irmenergy.com

NIFICANT AND MATERIAL ER ED BY THE RE TOR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DI SURES RSUANT TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which is in
line with requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). The objective of this policy is to
provide an effective complaint redressal mechanism if there is an occurrence of sexual
harassment.

Your Company has also set up an Internal Complaints Committee which is duly
constituted in compliance with the provisions of the POSH Act. Further, the Company also
conducts interactive sessions for employees, to build awareness about the policy and the
provisions of POSH Act.

1, Heritage
Chambers,
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated Health, Safety and Environment Policy to conduct the
business with a strong environment conscience, ensuring sustainable development, safe
workplaces and enrichment of the quality of life of its employees, customers and the
community.

STATUT UDITORS

M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.106625W),
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five
years in 1t Annual General meeting till the conclusion 6t Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company respectively at their
meeting held on June 22, 2021 proposed, subject to approval of the shareholders, the
appointment of M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.106625W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for their second term
of five (five) year i.e. from the conclusion of ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the 10t
Annual General Meeting.

Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark. The Auditor’s Report is enclosed with the financial
statement in this Annual Report.

COST AUD PORT

Your Company has re-appointed M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 000338) to conduct the audit of cost records maintained for Petroleum
Products of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 ata remuneration of Rs. 45,000/-
plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expense. The remuneration is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Cost Audit Report
for Financial year 2020-21 will be submitted to the Central Government in the prescribed
format within stipulated time period.

The company has maintained the cost accounts and records in accordance with Section
148 of the Companies act, 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

ECRE UDIT REPOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the Company has re-appointed M/s M. C. Gupta & Co., Company Secretaries
as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 is annexed which forms part of this report as
Annexure - C. There were no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers
given by the Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

Chambers,
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RTICULA EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request. In
terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent
to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’
particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days of the Company. If any member is
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary
in this regard.

COMPLIANCES

The Company has complied with all the statutory requirements and framed requisite
policies and procedures, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules formed thereunder.

MATERIAL CHANGES, TRANSACTIONS AND COMMITMENTS

There has not been any material change or commitment affecting the financial position
of the company which have been occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.

CON TION NERGY, TECHNOL AB PTION, FOREIGN EX E
EARNINGS & OUTGO

Details of conservation of Energy, Technology and Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo are provided in Annexure - D.

RESOURCES

Relations with employees across all the offices and units continued to be cordial
throughout the year. The HR team made good strides during the year and at the closure
of financial year, IRMEPL'’s head count was 95. IRMEPL maintains a congenial working
environment by providing stable employment, safe working conditions and job
satisfaction, which encourages the employees to contribute their best, Our responsible
approach to structured working conditions includes fair treatment at work, equitable
compensation system and flexible working arrangements. HR Policies are revisited in a
time bound manner to keep abreast with the industry practices. Your Directors place on
record, their sincere appreciation of the significant contribution made by the employees
at all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment.

{:,mmﬂ" 1
=| pehru Nagan
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks to the Financial
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For and on behalf of the Board

&0

Maheswar Sahu
Chairman
DIN: 00034051

Date: 26— 0% -2021
Place: Ahmedabad
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Annexure - A

FORM NO. AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries

1. SI. No.

2. Name of the subsidiary - Not Applicable

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's
reporting period

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital

6. Reserves & surplus

7. Total assets

8. Total Liabilities

9. Investments

10. Turnover

11. Profit before taxation

12. Provision for taxation

13. Profit after taxation

14. Proposed Dividend

15. % of shareholding

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.




Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

nnexure - A

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Sr | Name of Associates Farm Gas | Venuka Polymers
No. Private Limited | Private Limited
1. | Latest Balance sheet date 31.03.2021 31.03.2021
2. Date on which Associate or Joint Ventures was 09.12,2019 19.12.2019
associated or acquired
3. | Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by
the Company on the year end
No. 10,49,600 10,50,800
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 1,04,96,000 1,05,08,000
Venture
Extend of holding (%) 50% 50%
4. | Description of how there is significant % of holding % of holding
influence _
5. | Reason why the associate/joint venture is not N.A. N.A.
consolidated
6. | Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per (16,84,498) (9,44,602)
latest audited Balance Sheet
7. | Profit / Loss for the year (18,06,414) (10,61,568)
Considered in Consolidation (33,68,995) (18,89,204)
Not Considered in Consolidation - -

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

oo

Mol _

Maheswar Sahu
Chairman -
DIN: 00034051

s

Vinod Jain
Director
DIN: 08204721

b

Harshal hnjaria
Chief Financial Officer

Shikha Jain
Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 96- 0§-202)

Karan Kaushal

Chief Executive Officer

Chambers,
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Annexure - B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs:

The Company's CSR policy intends to operate its activities in providing clean energy solutions
to its customers in a manner that is efficient, safe & ethical, which minimizes negative impact
on environment and enhances quality of life of the community, towards sustaining a holistic
business. The Company undertakes a number of CSR activities in larger interest of the
community, especially in the area of clean energy promotion, health, education, women
empowerment, and childcare and environment protection

The CSR policy of the Company covers the proposed CSR activities in line with Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule VII thereto. The CSR Policy of the Company may be
accessed on the Company's website www.irmenergv.com.

2. The composition of CSR Committee:

Sr Name of Director Designation | Number of meetings of | Number of meetings
No. CSR Committee held | of CSR Committee
during the year attended during the
) year
1 Mr. Maheswar Sahu Chairman 1 1
2 Mr. Vinod Jain Member I 1
3 Mr. C K Gopal Member 1 1 N

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the Company

https://www.irmenergy.com
/corporate-governance

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).:

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set offin pursuance NIL
of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section
135(5):

Rs. 15,44,62,053/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company
as per section 135(5):

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial Nil
year, if any

Rs. 30,89,241/-

Chambers.
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(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- Rs, 30,89,241/-
7c)

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs) |

Amount Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified

spent  for | to unspent CSR account as | under Schedule VII as per second proviso

the financial | per Section 135(6) to Section 135 (5)

year (in Rs.) | Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer fund transfer

34,00,000 NA NA NA NA | NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
0 (@ Bl [(® [(5) e [ (@ |
Sr Name of the project | Item Loc | Location of the | Am | Mo | Mode of implementation - |
No from | al Project oun | de through implementation
the Are t of agency
list of | a spe | imp |
activi | (Ye nt lem
ties s/N for | ent
in 0) the | atio
Sched proj [ n -
ule State District | ect | Dir | Name | csrR
VII to (In | ect Registration
the lak | Yes No.
Act hs) | /No
L Covid Support — PM | (viii) - PAN India 11 No PM  CARES | -
CARES FUND Fund |
2. Green initiative into | (iv) No Gujarat | Mehsana | 20 No Indrashil CSRO0003497
Energy Sector and to Kaka Ba & '
promote usage of Kaka Budh
clean & green fuel in Public
transport sector., Charitable
‘Trust
2 Empowerment of | (vii) No Gujarat | Dahod 3 No N M | CSR0O0000285
tribal  and  rural Sadguru
communities  with Water and
natural resources Developme
restored, developed | nt
and expanded in the Foundation
selected project
areas.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 34,00,000/-

(8) Excess amount for set off, if any
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Sr | Particulars Amount

No (In Rs.)

L. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 30,89,241
135(5)

ii. | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 34,00,000
iii. | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 3,10,759
iv. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities Nil

of the previous financial years, if any

v. | Amountavailable for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise

details) _
(a) | Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset (s) NA
(b) | Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset NA

(c) | Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose | NA
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
(d) | Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired | NA
(including complete address and location of the capital asset)

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per Section 135(5): Not applicable

i
Mr. Karan Kaushal Mr. Maheswar Sahu

Chief Executive Officer Chairman CSR Committee
DIN: 00034051

Nahru Nagat,

Ambswadi
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. FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* March, 2021

rPurmant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies (4ppointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

[RM Energy Private Limited,

4" Floor, Block 8, Magnet Cor pcratn. Park,

Mear Zydus Hospital,

5 G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions ang the
adherence to good corporate practices by IRM Energy Private Limited (CIN:
U40100GJ2015PTCOB5213).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of IRM Energy Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31¥ March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IRM Energy Private Limited, having its Registered Office at 4% Floor, Block 8,
Magnet Corporate Park, Near Zydus Hospital, § G Highway, Ahmedabad 380 054 for the financial
year ended on 31* March, 2021 according to the provisions oft

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(Not Applicable)

iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable).

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
5. Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’): (Not Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

] thed ,/&?'".-"
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

{(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 and;

{g) The Securitics and Exéhange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

vi.  The Company has complied with the following specifically other applicable laws to the
Company:

{(a) The Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2006;
(b) The Environment (Protection) Act 1986;

(¢c) The Explosives Act, 1884;

(d) The Gujarat State Disaster Management Act, 2003;

(e) The Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2006;
(f) The Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2016.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. =~ The Company is not a listed entity and the compliance of the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given 1o all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

There were no dissenting views on any matter,

703, Mauryansh Elanza, Nr. Parekh’s Hospital, Shyamal Cross Roads, Satellite, Ahmedabad — 380 015
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with

the size and operations of the compary to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has no specific events / actions having a
major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. except the following:

1. At the 5™ Annual General General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 19%
September, 2020, the authorised share capital of the company was increased from Rs. 75
Cores to Rs. 90 crores consisting of Rs. 50 Crores as equity share capital and Rs. 40 crores as

Preference Share Capital, after convetsion of unissued Preference Share Capital of Rs. 6
crores into equity share capital.

2. At the 5" Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 19" September,
2020, the redemption period of 50,00,000 -10% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
each due on 2 March, 2022 was extended by a further period of § years.

3. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 9% July, 2021 has allotted
4,40,432 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a premium of Rs. 14/- per share and

19,98,977 - 10% Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at
par, issued on rights basis.

4. The Management Committee at its meeting held on 1st October, 2020 has allotted 14,34,039
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 13/- per share and also 14,15,464 -10%

Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at par, issued on
rights basis.

5. The 5th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company was held on September 19,
2020 through VC/OAVM in terms of MCA General Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 08,
2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020,

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries
- UCN: 81986GJ003400

Mooyt Cpla

ey \off o Mahesh C Gupta
Place: Ahmedabad Ve Y e— iy Proprietor
Date: 26" August, 2021 | & Pt 13 o FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)
| T4 . ‘7 Peer Review No.579/2019
L NI SECRE UDIN: F002047C000834593

Note: This Report is to be read with Qur Letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure “A” and
Jorms an integral part of this report.

703, Mauryansh Elanza, Nr. Parekh’s Hospital, Shyamnal Cross Roads, Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380 015
+019825091414 | +91 7948441414 | meguptacs@gmail.com | mcguptacs@yahco.com



CS Mahesh C. Gupta

W @me B.Com {Hons.), LL.M., MBA, ACMA, FCS

Annexure: “A”

To,

The Members,

IRM Energy Private Limited,

4" Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Near Zydus Hospital,

S G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054,

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this Letter;

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Secretarial Records based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We belicve
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibly of the management. Qur examination was limited to the verification
of the procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCN: S1986GJ003400

N0l e al G ol

Mahesh C Gupta

Place: Ahmedabad | Proprietor

Date: 26% August, 2021 FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)
Peer Review No.579/2019

UDIN: F002047C000834593

s —— —_—
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) Your Company has taken various steps for conservation of energy, which are as
under:

1. Installation of APFC (Automatic Power Factor Controller) panels at all the 46 CNG
stations at all the Geographical Areas: Automatic power factor controller has been
installed at all CNG stations with 4 quadrant energy meters, in order to maintain
power factor to ~ 0.99.

2. Installation of LED light fittings at all the CNG stations.

3. Implemented Vehicle Tracking System (VTS) in all the Light Commercial Vehicles
(LCVs) running to transport the CNG from Mother station to Daughter Booster
station for tracking and controlling of movements of vehicles to optimize
utilization and minimize fuel consumption.

4. Deployment of total 21 nos. of LCVs with Euro-IV engine complying BS-IV Norms
(inbuilt SCR - Selective Catalytic Reduction and DPF - Diesel Particulate Filter)
which is helping for reduction in air pollution and improvement in energy
efficiency of engine.

5. 16 nos. High Speed Diesel fueled LCVs Replaced with CNG fueled LCVs in this FY.
Furthermore, 42 nos. LCVs shall be deployed/converted on CNG in next FY.

6. Deployed 12 nos. of Type-IIl and 03 nos. of Type-IV Mobile cascades which could
lead us to transport on an average 95% more CNG quantity in the same RTKM as
compare to Type-I/Conventional Mobile cascades, hence the transportation of
CNG became more efficient and hassle free.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Rs. 32.24 lacs (PY:Rs.
24.14 lacs) towards Installation of APFC (Automatic power factor controller) panels
and LED light fittings at IRMEPL CNG stations.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

Your Company is continuously improving on technology front and below activities
have been undertaken:

1, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehru Nagar,
Ambawadi
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a) Implementation of Live Pressure Monitoring in 10 nos. Mobile Cascade/LCVs
running between Mother and Daughter Booster station to optimize utilization
and movement control of LCVs.

b) Company has enhanced its Remote Monitoring System across CNG Stations of
all the GA’s. All the Motor driven CNG Online and Booster Compressor
operations are advanced and operating in automation. 100% Billing of all the
CNG stations across all the GA’s are generated by SCADA system without
human interference. CNG rate change could also be done by just one click from
the Central SCADA Control Room. Live monitoring and controlling of CNG
Compressor Alarms/Trips could make operation of compressors possible
without operators.

c) Successfully commenced First CNG Fishing Boat conversion and run trial at
Dwarka that saved fuel cost by 70% compared to petrol driven boat. Further
various technical discussions are going on with Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs) of CNG Boat Engines in the region for mass conversion
in upcoming FY.

d) Upgradation of Fill post and Decanting Post to %" that resulted in to 13% Fast
CNG filling in Mobile cascades and 4% higher recovery as compared to
conventional 3/8" size Fill post/Decanting Post at CNG stations that minimized
start-stop of compressor and reduced power consumption of Booster
COMpressor.

e) Commenced one Mother station Fill post Automation with Radio Frequency
Identification (RFID) technology that made value addition in the CNG Fill post
operations over the conventional filling system.,

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development and import substitution:

a) Moving to SCADA software has saved man hours and will have accuracy in CNG
billing.

b) By introducing SPOT billing, the cost of meter reading and collection has been
minimized.

¢) Complaint Management System has ensured continuous and smooth
operations of the CNG stations by real time tracking of all kinds of CNG Stations
complaints with regard to equipment installed.

d) GIS system helps monitoring entire pipeline grid network on real time basis.

(iii)In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned
from the beginning of the financial year): None

a) the details of technology imported: NA

b) the year of import: NA

¢) whether the technology has been fully absorbed: NA

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
reason thereof: NA

Nehru Nagar,

ambawadi
Ahmadabad-15.
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(iv) Expenditure on R&D (Rs. In lacs): The Company has tied up with Punjab State
Council for Science and Technology and National Institute of Secondary Steel
Technology for technical assistance and support for establishing model units for
conversion of Coal Fired Furnace into PNG Fired furnace in Mandi Gobindgarh. This
will help reduce the consumption of fuel per ton of production and reduce the overall
pollution as the industrial units will no longer use pollutant fuel like coal and Furnace
Oil. The Company has spent Rs. 10.49 lacs for the said purpose during the year ending
31.03.2021.

C. E EXCHANGE EARN D OUTGO

During the year under review, the foreign currency outgo was Rs. 6.65 lacs (approx.)
(PY: Rs. Nil). The Company did not receive any amount in foreign currency.

Nehru Nagar.

Ambawadi
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IRM Energy Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IRM Energy Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31* March 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respansibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s Report and Other Relevant Information contained therein, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting reco :
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prev,
191-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are toe obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Chambers,
Nehru Nagar,
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e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to
express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

Chambers,
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii.  The Company has contracts as mentioned in note 36 including derivative contracts for which
there were no losses.

iii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

ot

Chambers,
= Nehru Nagaf,
* Ambawadi

Ahmadabad-

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.:128670
Place: Ahmedabad

UDIN: 21128670AAAABAS193

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7* Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“Annexure — A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of IRM
Energy Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

i (@)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b)  Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

2. As explained to us, the inventories were verified during the year by management at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

3. The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.

4. Based on our verification of records and in our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not given any loans, guarantees or security or made any investments to
which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act is applicable, Hence reporting requirements in terms
of clause (iv) of Paragraph 3 and any sub-clauses thereunder of the order are not applicable to the
company for the current year.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company
Law Board of National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal,
in this regard.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

7 (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax,
Custom duty, Excise duty, Value added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues during the

year with the appropriate authorities. Moreover, as at March 31, 2021, there are n
(’"’-i""“' D Reritage s

undisputed dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date they became
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no such dues as at March 31,
2021 which have not been deposited/paid on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, banks, government or due to debenture holders during the year.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). The term loans raised during the year have been utilized by the Company for the purpose
for which the same has been taken.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of books of
accounts, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 (with schedule V) of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment of shares during the year. Company
has complied with Section 42 of the Companies Act 2013 and amount raised have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Hence reporting requirements in terms of clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 and any sub-
clauses thereunder of the order are not applicable to the company for the current year.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal
Partner
Membership No.: 128670

_A

Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: 21128670AAAABAS193

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | wwiw.mmsco.in .
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report — March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRM Energy Private Limited (“the
company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential
compaonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI]. These respansibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

As per Section 143(3)(i) our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Controls and, both issued by
the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

i Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or dispasition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected, also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

UDIN: 21128670AAAABA9193

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in .

7" Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

[Unless otherwise stated, all ameunts are in Indicn Rupees)

Particulars Note No. o ui;ﬂo;:h 3, as at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-cumrent assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 31 2.30.79.87.450 1,89.01,80,733
k] Cuapital work-in-progress 32 19.70,16.6364 28,95,96.325
c) Intangibles assels 33 2,64 84723 2,41,14,004
d| Rightto Use Assets 34 7.14,68.841 6,27,33,982
e] Intangibles under Development 19,32.930 23,507,729
f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 44 4,40,06,000 15,00,000
(i} Loans - -
fiiy Other financial assets 5 43,81,423 1,24,95,659
a) Other non-current dssets & 22,4023 466 13,49,32,689
h} Current Tax Asset [Net} - -
2,90,13.01.849 2,41,79,11,122
Current assets
a) Inventories 7 80,48,074 69,49,184
b) Finarcial assefs =
fi} Investments 4B 1.37.81.000 -
(iij Trade receivables 8 10,52.10.440 4,21,53.585
(i) Cash and cash equivalents A 2575.18.993 10,27.02.692
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 78 18,58,50,538 8.75,44,530
(v) Loans = =
{vi} Other financial assels 10 1.94,87,323 1,42,09,889
) Othercurent assels 11 2,15,64,194 2,30,99.777
61,14,40,562 27.66.59.659
Total Assets 3.51.27,42,431 2.69.45,70.781
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a] Equity share capital 12 28,92,94,710 27,12,50,000
b] Cther equity 13 8B.86,84,1664 47.63,43,889
Total equity 1,17,84,78,874 74,75.93.889
Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
[i} Bomowings T4A 1.58.18,18,590 1.44,92 48,597
(i) Trade payables = -
[iiij Other financial liabilities 16 19.73.05.210 12,17.91,492
b) Provisions 174 70,03,574 3952373
c) Defered tox liabilities (Net) 19 9.35.76.95] 7.38.52,112
1,88,17,04,325 1,44,88,44 574
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabillies
{i} Bomrowings 14B 516,94,002 -
{ij Trade poyables 15 -
- total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises 1.12,14.024 2,42,03,603
- total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises 89386223 4,78,97.651
and small enterprises =
(i) Other inancial iabilifies 16 14,12,31.644 14,84,74,587
b) Provisions 178 1,09, 648 41,957
] Other curent liabilities 18 2,97.23,686 1.64,12,520
d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 12,90,00,000 4,02,00,000
45,23,59,230 27.81,32318
Total Equity and Liabilities| 3,51,27 .42, 431 2,6%,45,70,781

See gccompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Begistration No: 106625W

% "F 1, Heritage
Chambers,

Nehiu Nagar,

Harsh Kejriwal
Partrer
Membershin Number : 128670

Ahmedabad, Dated : 2-1” 201)

Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15.

For and on behalf of the Board

i N

Chairrian

Karan Kaushal
CEQ

shmedabad, Dated @ 22nd June, 2021

Vinod Jain
Director

FrE g
Harshal Anjaria
CFO

EW
Shikha lain
Company Secretary



IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

SEPARATE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

|Unlass otherwise stated. all eamounts are in Indian Rupses)

For the year ending

For the year ending

Puiticulons LN March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
REVENUE :
|Revenue from Operations 20 2,11,80.88,491 1,65.65,70,235
Cther Non-operating Income 21 73.33.104 46,93,141
2,12,54 21,795 1.66,12,63,376
EXPENSES :
Cost of Natural Gas and other Operating Cost 22 1,03,93,95,643 86,28,23913
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and 23 (1,96,025) (4,95,583)
Stock-in-Trade
|Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas 22,24,39,.413 18,09,92,323
Employee Benefits Expense 24 411,07, 717 3,43.68,962
Finance Costs 25 15,85,51,758 9.66,58,585
Depreciation and Amaortisation expense 26 12,00,01,055 9.18,05,715
Other Expenses 27 8,32,50,852 8,18,09,656
1,66,45,50,413 1,34,79,63,572
Profit before Tax 46,08,71,382 31,32,9%,804
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 28 8,98,86,430 4,27.63,276
- Deferred Tax 28 1.97.24,839 5,96,17,521
Profit for the year 35,12,60,113 21,09,1%9,006
Other Comprehensive income
i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset 1,75,675 (5.57.497)
b. Income tax related fo this items = 1,59.444
1,75,675 (3,98,053)
Total comprehensive income 35,10,84,438 21,13,17,059
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 12.47 8.61
Diluted 12.47 8.461
See accompanying notes to the financial staterments
As per our report of even date i
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants _u
Firm Registration No: 106625W [ Tver
b 7, Heritage QL%LU,{ )
Chambers, - 1 r~ _—
Nshru Nagar, :
Harsh Kejriwal Ambaath Sahu Vinod Jain
Partner Chairman Director

Membership Number : 128470

M“"""L

Karan Kaushal

CEO

Ahmedabad, Dated : 22nd June, 2021

-
X ’\J O A"ﬁ
Harshal Anjaria
CFO

Shikha Jain
Company Secretary



IRM ENERGY PVT LTD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
(Unless otherwise stated, all amaounts are in Indian Rupees)
WPurﬁculurs For the period ending
Mar- 2021 Mar- 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and exfraordinary items 46,06,95.707 31,32,99.804
Adjustment for: -
Interest Income (70,26,230) (46,23.141)
Interest and Finance Charges 15,85,51,758 9.64,58,586
Provision for Expenses 30,581,201 3.20,45,23]
Pravision for Income (18,32,733) (48,13.676)
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 12,00,01,055 9.18,05,715
Operating profit before waorking copital changes 73,34,40,758 52.43,02,519
(Increase)/Decrsase in Other Assets [10.41,59,394) (7,04,66,162)
(Increase)/Decraase in Inventorias (10.98,888) (42,84,850)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable |6,30.56,855) (1,24,91,717)
Increase/|Decrease) in Trade Payables 2,84,98,995 2,49,38,989
Increase/(Decrease) In Financial Liabilities 6,32,78.544 2.80,82,789
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 12,12.03.6%4 1,30,31,302
Cash generated from operation 77,61,06,872 50,31,12,871
Direct taxes paid (incl TDS) (9.14,65,832) (5,83,84,408]
Cash flow before extraordinary items 68.46.41,041 44,47,28,463
Net cash from operating activities (@) 68,46,41,041 44,47,28,4463
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest Income 64,62.311 49,74.873
Investment (7.62,47.000) (15.00.000)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (incl. capital work in progress) (46,43,84,032) (75,90.,45.917)
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (53,41,90,721) (75,55,71,044)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from equity shares issued 4,35,53,245 7.50.00,000
Proceeds from Banks Borowings 17,21,04,222 31,73.76.220
Interest and Finance Cost [13,66,72,299) (2.00,33,429)
Lease cost (93,29,724) (B4,17,156)
Stamp duty on issue of shares {11.27.885) (1,75.851)
Dividend (incl. Dividend Distribution tax) - (4,13,04,825)
Proceeds from preference shares issued 3.41.44,410 10,08,49,910
Net cash from financing activities (c) 10,246,71,989 35,32,94,849
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) 25,31,22,308 4,24,52,288
Cash and cash eguivalents — opening balance 19,02,47,222 14,77,94,934
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 44,33,69,530 19,02,47,222
As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. Far and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration No: 1064625W __E
7, Heritaga %ﬂ ‘ ol
Chambers, —
[Harsh Kejiiwal M M. $ahu Vinod Jain
Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number : 128670 &
Ahmedabad, Dated : 2 4-0%-202) e A"‘?
Karan Kaushal Harshal Anjaria
CEOQ CFO
A
$I§h£in
Company Secretary
Ahmedabad, Dated : 22nd June, 2021
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(i)

(iv)

(v

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant & equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under

other non- current asselts.

The capitalisationrate of 8.14% is used to determine the amount of Borrowing cost that
is capitalised to the qualifying asset.

Capilal work in progress and current year fixed assets includes borrowing cosl
capitalised on qualifying assets amounting to Rs. 2,22,92,815 (31s March, 2020: Rs.
2,87,02,740)

Depreciationis provided as follow:

= Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated over the permissible useful life
specifiedinSchedule |l pursuant to section 123(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
as per 'Straight line method", read with the following notes:

o The Schedule specifies useful life of Pipelines as 30 years for those used
in exploration, production & refining of oil & gas. The Company has
considered the useful life of 25 yrs for the pipelines used in city gas
distribution business.

o City gaos slalions, skids, pressure regulating stations, meters &
regulators, Compressars, Dispensers, Cascades are estimated tohave
useful life of 15 years based on technical assessment made by
technical expert & management.

o The management believes that these useful lives are realistic & reflect
fair approximation of the period overwhich the assets are likely to be
used. The useful lives are reviewed by the management al each
financial year end & revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the
unamorlised depreciable amount (remaining net value of assets) is
charged over the revisedremaining useful life.

o For the purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value far
Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of asset
concerned.

« Depreciationonitems of property, plant & equipment acquired / disposed-off
during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of
addition / disposal.

« Deprecialionon addifions fo Property, Plant and Equipment made during the
period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on pro rata basis with
reference to the dale of addition.

= Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the siatement of profit & loss under
Other Expenses/Income.

Useful life of assels are considered as menfioned in Companies Act, 2013 under
Schedule Il. However, uselul life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered cs the
period for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor of payment is not
specified by the authorities, the useful life of such ROW charges is considered as 10
years. Cost incurred fowards purchase of software is amortised on Straight line method
overits usefullife of 5 yrs as estimatedby the management.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtfaining Right of Way [ROW)
permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of developing software feor
internal use. The Company capitalises software as Infangible Assel where ilis expected
to provide future enduring economic benefils. Cost associated with maintaining
software programmes are recognised as expensas as & when incurred.

Any item of intangible assefs is derecognised upon disposal or when no future

economic benefits are expectedfrom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of Ihe intangible asset (calculated as the difference between the net

2
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disposal proceeds & the carrying amount of the intangible asset) is charged to revenue
in the income sfatement when the intangible assetis derecognised.

Foreigncurrency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rales prevailing at the date of such
Iransactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are franslaled at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dale of the Balance Sheet. Gain/Loss arising on account of
differences inforeign exchange rates on setllement/transiation of monetary assets & liabilities ae
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjusiment to
borrowing cosis, in which case they are capitalised along with the borrewing cosi,

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The
Company recognises revenue whenthe amount ofrevenue can be reliably measured,
itis probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company & no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from the
sale of goods /services & regarding its collection.The Company bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into considerationthe type of custamer, the type of transaction
& the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Natural Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by metered/assessed
measurements as no significant uncerlainly exists regarding the measurability or
collectability of the sale consideration. Sales are billed bi-monthly for domesiic
customers, monthly/fortnightly for commercial & non-commercial customers &
fortnightly for industrial customers as the timing of the transfer of risks & rewards varies
depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement. Revenue on sale of
Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) isrecognized on scle of gas to consumers from retdil
outlets.

The amount recognised as revenue is statedinclusive of excise duty & exclusive of Sales
Tax /Value Added Tax (VAT] & Goods & Service Tax & is net of frade discounts or
quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised as the relofed supply of natural gas are performed &
revenue from the end of the last billing cycle o the Balance Sheet date.

The amounts collecled lowards connection charges from certain domestic customers
are "Non-Refundable Charges". Accordingly, the same are recognized as revenue as
& when the Company receives the amount from the customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes amount
“refundable” in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a liability under head
"Deposit from Customers" inthe balance sheet.

(if) Interestincomeis recognised on time proportionate method (on accrual basis).

(iii) kRevenue in respect of other income is recognised when no significant unceriainty as
to its determination or realisation exists.

Borrowing Costs:

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to the date of commissiening.
Qualifying assels are assets that necessarily take o substantial period of time to gel
ready for their inftended use or sale.

(ii) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets:

The Company, at each balance sheel date, assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset &/ or cash generaling unil. If such indication exists, assets are impaired
by comparing carrying amount of each asset &/ or cash generating unit to the recoverable
amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the
present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets.

N
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Nehru Nagar,
Ambawadi

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued at lower of cost
& net redlizable value. Costis determined on welghted average cost method.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, elc) are valued at lower
of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on movingweighted average basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance withthe Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or credil (reflecting the tax effect
of fiming differences between accountingincome & taxable income for the period). Income tax
expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss except tax expenses related to items
recogniseddirectly inreserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which are
recognised with the underlying items.

(i) The Income Tax expense or credit for the periodis the fox paydble on the current periods
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate foreach jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assels & liabilifies attributable to temporary differences & to
unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from fime to time. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect io situations in which applicable tax
regulationis subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expecied fo be paid fo the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for currentincome taxes are presentedin the balance sheet
after off-setling advonce tax paid & income tax provision arising in the same tax
jurisdliction for relevant tax paying units & where the Company is able to & intends to

seftle the asset & liability on a net basis.

(ii) DeferredTax is provided infull on temporary ditference arising between the tax bases of
the assets & liabilities & their carrying amounts in financial statements at the reporting
date. Deferredtax arerecognisedin respect of deductible tem porary differences being
Ilhe difference between taxable income & accounting income that originate in one
period & are capable of reversalin one or more subsequent periods., the carry forward
of unused tax losses & the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period & are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is reclised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred Tax Assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences & unused
tax losses onlyifitis probable that future taxable amounts will be available to ulilise those

temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets & liabilities & when he deferred tax balances relate 1o the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets & tax liabilifies are offse where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset & intends either to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset & settle the liability simullaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to itemsrecognisedin other comprehensive income or directlyinequity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other camprehensive income or directlyin equity, respectively.

Any lax creditavailable including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provision of
the Income Tax Act, 1941 is recognised as deferred tax to the exlent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilised. The said assetis created by way of creditto the statemenl of profit & loss & shown
under the head deferred tax asset.

The carrying amaunt of deferrediox assets is reviewed at each reportingdate &reduced
to the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient faxable profitwill be available to
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allowall or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed al each reporfing date & are recognised to the extenl that it has
become probable that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

211 leases:
The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease assel classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a initicl
application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or contains, o lease if the contract
conveys the right fo confrol the use of an identitie d asset for a period of fime in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the rightto control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract involves the use of an
idenlified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benelits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii] the Company has the right to direct
the use of the assel.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use
(ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, exceptforleaseswithaterm of 12 manths or less (short-term leases) andlow value
leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operaling expense on actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certainlease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it
isreasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The RQU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on the initia
application date, that is arrived based on incremental borrowing rate on the initial
application date. They are subsequenily measured at cost less accumulated
depreciationand impairmentlosses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the inifial application date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are
evaluated forrecoverabilitywhenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assetdoes not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unil [CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liabilityis initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments on the date of inilial application. The lease payments are discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with o
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes it
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability
and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. When the Campany is an inlermediate lessor, it accounts
for its inferests in the head lease and the sublease separalely. The sublease is classified
as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head
lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevantlease.

2.12 Employee Benefits:

Liabilitiesfor wages & salaries, including leave encashmenl that are expected lo be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service

Chambers are recagnisedin respect of employees'services up fo the end of the reporting & are measured
ambers,
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at the amounts expecied to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligationsinthe balance sheet.

(i) Defined Coniribution Plan:

Confributiontowards provideni fund for eligible employees are accruedin accordance
with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory provident fund authorities
[Government administered provident fundscheme).The Group does not carry any other
obligationapart from the monthly confribution.

The Company's confributionisrecognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss
during the periodin which the employee renders Ihe relatedservice.

{ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees
in accordance with the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, through an approved Gratuity
Fund. The Gratuity Fund is separately administered through a Trust/Scheme. Contributions
inrespectof gratuity are made to the approved Gratuity Fund.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets. The Liabilities withregard to the
Gratuity Plan are determinedby actuarial valuation, perfarmedby an independent
Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligafion denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to the market yields at the
reporling period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation.

The net interest costin calculated by applying the discounting rate to the net balance
of he defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan assets. Such costs are included
in employee benefit expenses in the stalement of Profit & Loss.Re-measurements gains
or losses arising from experience adjusimenls & changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the period in which they occur directly in "other
comprehensiveincome" & are includedinretained eamingsin the statement of changes
in equity & inthe balance sheel. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or lossin
subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit & loss:
. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains & losses
on curtailments & non-routine settlements;
. Nel interest expense or income,

(iii) Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability inrespect of accrued leave benefits which are expected fo be availed or
encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is treated as long term employee
benefits.

The Company's liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at balance sheet
dafe by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognizedin the Staiement of Other Comprehensive Income
inthe year in which they arise.

fiv} Reter note no. 31 below for disclosure.

Segment Reporting:

The Company has a single operating segment that is “Sale of Natural Gas"”. Ac cordingly, the
segment revenue, segment resulls, segmeni assets & segment liabilities are reflected in the
financial statements themselves as at & for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

Provisienisrecognised when the Company has a present obligation as a resull of pas! events &
itis probable that the outflow of resources will be requiredto settle the obligation & inrespect of
which reliable estimatescanbe made. A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is
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a possible obligation that may, but probably will nat require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respecl of which the likelihood of outflow of
resourcesisremote, no provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognisedin the
financial statement,

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusied to reflect the
correctmanagement estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash flows are reported using the indirectmethod, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or accruals of past
or future operaling cash receipts or payments & item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operaling, investing & financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date:

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed af the balance sheet date|
occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial statements. Material non
adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet
cdate) occurring after the balance sheet date that represents malterial change & commitment
affecting the financial position are disclosedin the Directors' Report.

Exceptional tems:

Cerfainoccasions, the size, lype orincidence of an item ofincome or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary aclivities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item &
accordingly, disclosedinthe notes accompanying to the financial statements.

Dividends:

Final Dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the date ol approval of the same by
Shareholders & interim dividend are recorded as liability on the date on declaration by
Company's board of Directors. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year

Earnings per Share:

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss [excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year attributable fo equily shareholdsrs by the weighted
average number of equily shares oulstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equily shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such s bonus issue, bonus
element in a right issue, shares split & reserve share splits [consolidation of shares] that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without o corresponding change inresources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profil or loss [excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year attribulable o equity shareholders & the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted forthe effects of all dilutive potentid
equity shares.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to o financial asset of one entity and o
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contfracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts, cross currency interest rate
swaps, inferestrate swaps, currency options and embedded derivativesinthe host contract.
a. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognizedinitially at fair value (plus transaclion costs attributable

to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of financial assels are nol recorded
at fair value through profit orloss).
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Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized
cost or fair value depending on the company's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The company assesses lhe objective of a business model in which an assetis held at o
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and
informationis provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financid
asset on initial recognition. 'Inferest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the creditrisk associated with the principal amount cutstanding during a
period, for other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), and
profit margin.

In assessing whether the confractual cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and
interest, the company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A financicl asset is measured af ameoertised cost only if both of the following conditiors
are met:
- Itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assefs to collect
confractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial csset represents contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Afterinitialmeasurement, such financial assets are subseguenlly measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any disc ount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation s included as finance income in the profit or lass. The lasses arising from
impairment arerecognisedin the profitor loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditions
are met:
- itis held within a business maodel whose objective is fo hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.
- the conlractual terms of the financial asset represent contraciual cash flows
that are sclely payments of principal and interest.

On inifial recognition, the Company makes an irevocable election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis fo present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining fo investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment
which are held for frading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognisedin other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive
income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition fo present subsequent changes in fair value in
ofher comprehensive income for investmentsin equity instruments which are not held for
frading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through protit or loss unless itis measured

at amortised cost or af fair value through other comprehensive income on initicl
recognilion. The fransaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financic
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assets and liabilities af fair value through profit or loss are immedialely recognised in
statement of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investmentin subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are measured at cost
lessimpairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Financial Statements.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviewsits carrying value of investments carried at cost or amortised cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable
amountis less than its carrying amount, the impairment|oss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, o part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the company's
balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

-The company has transferredits rights to receive cash flows from the assetor
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withoul
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and
either (@) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the company has neither fransferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transfered control
of the asset.

When the company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
enfered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither fransisrred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the company continues to recognize the fransferred assel to the extent of the
company's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an
associated liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability are measuredon a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the com pany has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be requiredto repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset [or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the considerationreceived (including any new assetobtained less any
new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
the OClisrecognisedin profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with ifs assels carried at
amortised cost and FVYOCI debt instruments on a forward-looking basis. The impairment
melhodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credil risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as
permittedbythe Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, whichrequires expecledlifetime losses
to be recogrnised from the inifial recognition of the frade receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal
to the 12 month expected creditlosses or at an amount equal to the life time expected
creditlossesif the creditrisk on the financial assets has increased significantlysince initid
recognition.
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b. Financial Liabilities
i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified al initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or amortised cosl, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of amortised
cost, net of direcily altributable transaction costs,

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After the initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured atamortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and lasses are recognised in profi
orloss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the FIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
feesor costs that are anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationis included as finance
costsin the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liobilities designatedupon inifial recognition as at fair value through
profitor loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasingin the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognisedin the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteriain the Ind AS
109 are safisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses altributable to
changes in own creditrisk are recognizedin OCL. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to the P&L, However, the Company may fransfer the cumulalive gain or loss
within equity. All the other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Mocodificationsof financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

iIf the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the cash
flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially
different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asse! are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a
new linancial assetis recognised at fair value.

if the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amorfised cosl are nol substantially
different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In
this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying amount of Ihe financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a modificationis carried out because of financid
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. Inother cases, itis presented as interestincome. The gain / loss is recognisedinother
equity in case of fransaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value {net of
transaction cosis incurred). Difference between the fair value and the transaction
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proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based on the underlying reason for
the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial liability when ifs ferms are
modified, and the cash flows of the modifiedliability are substantially different. In this case,
a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of ihe financial licbility exfinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is
recognisedin other equily in case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equily component of the Preference Shares considering
Ihe terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further modified the estimates of future
cash flows.

RecentIndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ["MCA"] notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There isno such notificationwhich would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Fair Value Measurements:

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convenlion, except certain
financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounfing policy on financidl
instfruments) as per relevant applicable Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability fakes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
mostadvaniageous marketmust be accessible o the Company.

The fairvalue of an asset or a liabilityis measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic bestinterest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial assef takes into account a
marketparticipant's ability fo generate ecenomic benefits by using the assetinits highest & best
use or by sellingit to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest & best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances & for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inpuls & minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets & liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosedin the financial statements are categorizedwithin the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

* Llevel 1 — Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

« Llevel 2— Valuationtechniques for which the lowestlevel input that is significant fo the fair
value measurementis directly orindirectly observable

= level3— Valuationtechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurementis unobservable

For assets & liabilities that are recognisedin the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred belween Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisafion (based on the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value
medasurement as awhole) at the end of each reporting period.
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As at 31 March 2021

Financial instruments by category (carrying amount)

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

F
¥:
FVPL 0| Amorlised cost Total Llevel 1 | Level 2 Level 3 Total

i
Financial assets
Investment 1.37.61.000 | - 4,40,04,000 7.77.67.000 - - 7.77.67.,000 777,647,000
Trade receivables E 10,52,10,440 10,52,10,440 - 5 10,52,10,440 10,52,10,440
Cash & cashequivalents - 2575,18,993 25,75,18,993 - 25,75,18,993 25,75,18,993
OtherBonk Balances 18.58.50.538 18.58,50,538 - - 18.58.30.007 18.58,50,.538
QOther financialassets 2,58.68.9464 2,58,68,946 - 2.64.05,120 2,58,68,944
Total financial assets 1,37,61,000 | - 63,84,54,917 65,22,15,917 - - 65,22.15,917 65,22,15,917
Financial liabilities
Borrowings =1 =| 1.63.3512592 1,63.35,12.592 - 1,63,35.12.592 | 1,63,35,12592
Trade payaobles 10.06.00,249 10.06,00.249 - 10,04,00,249 10.06.00,249
Other financial liabilities - 34,05,34,856 34,05,364,854 - 34,05,34.856 34,05,36,856
Total financial liabilities = | - | 2,07,46,49697 2,07.46,49497 - 2,07,46,49697 | 2,07,44,49497
As at31 March 2020 Financial insiruments by category (carnying amount) Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

F

FVPL o| Amorised Total el | tavel Level 3 Total

c cost 1 2

1
Einancial assets
Investment - 15,00,000 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 15.00.000
Trade receivables i R 4,21,53.585 4,21.53,585 - - 4.21,53,585 4,21,53,585
Cash & cash equivalents - 10,27,02,692 10,27,02,652 - 10.27.02.692 10,27,02,492
Other Bank Balances = B.75,44 530 8.75.44.530 - 8,75.44,530 8,75.44,530
Other financial assets =] = 2,67,05,548 2,67,05.548 - = 2.67.05.548 2,67,05.548
Total financial assets - - 26,06,06,355 26,06,06,355 - - 26,06,06,355 26,04,06,355
Financial labilities
Borrowings =] =] 1.44,92.48597 1.44,92,48,597 - 1.44.92 48,597 1.44,92,48.597
Trade payables 7.21,01,254 7,21,01,254 - - 7.21.01,254 7.21,01,254
Other financial liobilities - 29.04,468,079 29.04.68,079 - - 272,04,68,079 29.04,68.079

Total financiol liabilities

1,81,18,17,730

1,81,18,17.930

1.81,18,17.930

1,81,18.17,230

223

allamounts are in Indian Rupees.

The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessar

y. Unless otherwise stated,
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notes {o the financial statements

[{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Indian Rupees)

Note No. |Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as af March 31, 2020
4 Investments
4A Non Current
(i} |{Unquoted Investment in Equity Instruments of Joint Confral Entity (measured at cost)
- 10,492,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 sach fully paid of Farm Gas Private limited 1.04.94.000 10,00,000
(31st March, 2020: 1.00,000)
- 10.50,800 Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private limited 1.05,08,000 5,00.000
{31st March, 2020: 50,000)
(i} |Unquoted Investment in Preference Shares of Joint Confrol Entity {measured ot fair Value)
- 1520000, 10.50% Cumulotive Redeemable Prefarence Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of 1,59.00,000 -
Farm Gas Private imited (31st March, 2020: Nil)
-27.10,200 10.50% Cumulative Redesmable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of 2.71.02.000 3
Venuka Polymers Private Limited [31st March, 2020: Nil)
6,40,06,000 15.00,000
4B|Current
Investment in Mutugl Fund
- Union Hybrind Equity Fund - Growth (845644.72 unifs of Rs. 10 each. Fair value as on 71.84,511 =
31.03.2021: Rs. 10.61 each]
- Unien Medium Duration Fund- Growth (448477.5% units of Rs. 10 each. Fair value as an 45,76,489 E
31,03.2021: Es, 10.2045 each)
1,37.41,000 -
5 Other financlal asset- Non-cument
Secunty Deposil
To Related Parlies [Unsecured, considerad goad) 4,38.600 4,38.600
Te Others [Unsacured. considerad good) 59,43,023 1.20,57 05%
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful = =
63,81.623 1.24,95,459
13 Other non- current assefs
Capital advances [Unsecured, considered good] 35.77.500 -
Unamortised expenses - Borowing Cost under FIR 1.87.06,595 20378616
Advance payment of income tox 16,08.44.468 6.98,04,7466
Prepaid Expenses 4,28,94,903 4,47.29.307
22,60,23,464 13.49.32,689
7 Inventories
Natural Gas 20,684,640 18.48.615
Spares and Consumables 59.05.089 4976111
CNG Kits 78.345 1.04,460
(Far Valuation- Refer note 2.10)
80,48,074 59,49,186
8 Current financial assets : Trade recelvables
Secured, considered good (secured against security deposis) | 6,82,79.363 273,89 409
Unsecured, considered good (Others) 3,692.31.077 1,47.64,176
Less: Allowance tor Bad and Doubtiul - -
10,52,10,440 4,21,53,585




IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

(Unlass otherwise stated, all amounts are in Indian Rupees)

Note No. |Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
9 Curmrent financial assets
9A|Cash and cash equivalents
{a} Balanca with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 257272288 10,25,65,525
[b) Cash on hand 2.46.705 1.36.767
9B|Bank balances other than above
fcc:rL::i.;:n[‘?érI;l?ney deposits under lien against Bank Guaranies and/ar Stand By Leter of 18,58.50.538 8.75,44,530
*The Company has issued Bank Guarantees and Stand-By Letter of Cradit{SBLC) to various
Govt. Agencies and alher Suppliers during riormal course of business, Such Bank Guarantees
and SBLC have been issued against Margin Money kept with bank in the form of Fixed
Deposits camying matuity of betwsen é months fo 12 months.
44,33,69.531 19,02,47,222
10 Current financial assets : Others
Unbilled Revenue 66,446,408 48,13,676
Interest Receivable 33.489 47,256
Deposit - Current 1.24,42,676 F0.77.138
Imprest amount with Employess 3,64,550 2.71.819
1,94,87,323 1,42,09,889
1 Other current assets
Advance to Suppliers 1.04.08,080 38,29.317
Prepaid Expense 1,01,56,114 1,92,70,460
2,15,64,194 2,30,99,777
12 Share capital
Authorised :
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Bach 50,00,00,000 29,00,00.000
4.00,00.000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 40,00.00.000 46,00,00,000
70.00.00,000 75.00,00.000
Issued, Subsciibed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares ;
Equity shares
2,89.99.471 [as at March 31, 2019 2.71.25.000], Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- sach 28,92.94.710 27.12,50,000
Preference shares
10% Redeemable Preference Shares - -
3.49.99.432 [os at March 31, 2019: 3,15,.84,991] shares of Rs, 10/- sach
289994710 27,12.50,000
A Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of oulstanding Shares as al March 31, 2021 is as under:
i)|Equity Shares
Name No. of shares % of Holding
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 1.48.91.004 51.35%,
Dr. Raijiv | Modi (Trustee of IRM Trust) 55,47 428 19.13%
Enerfech Distibulion Management Pvi, Lid. 85,60,83% 29.52%
i) n Cumulative Reede, re e Shares
Name No. of shares % of Holding
Cadila Pharmaceuficals Lid 3.49,99.432 100%




IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the financial statements

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Indian Rupees)

Note No. |Parliculars as at March 31, 2021 | as af March 31, 2020

B Terms and conditions:

—
=

|Equity Shares:
a|Voling rights:
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholders are enitled

to one vote per share held,

b|Dividend:
The: dividened provided, if any, by board of directors is subject lo approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeting,
excepl, in case of interim dividend. In the event of liguidation of the company, the equity sharshaolders shall be entitled

to proporfionate share of their holding in the assets remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts.

(ii}| Redeemable Non- Cumulative Preference Shares (RPS):

B i ARAEN

o

The preference shares carmies redemption period of 10 years from the date of ssuance.
Dividend:

The dividend provided, if any. by board of directors is subject to opproval of shareholders in Annual General Meeting,

=2

excepl. in case of interim dividend. In the event of iquidafion of the company, the equity shareholders shall be enlitled

fo proporfionate share of their holding in the assets remaining after distribution of all preferential amaunts
e Reconciliation of shares oulstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repoding period

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 2,71,25,000 2,1500.000
Add: Shares issved dunng the period 18.74.471 56,25,000
Shares oulstanding al the end of the period 2,89.99.471 2,71,25,000

Non Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars as al March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
Shares oulstanding at the beginning of the pariod 3.15849%1 2,15.00.000
Add: Shares issued during the period 19.98.977 1,00:84,991
Shares oufstanding at the end of the pericd 33583948 3,15.84.991

13 Reserves and surplus
A. Statement of profit and loss

Opening balance 28,47,90,522 11.51.76.343
Add: Transter from statement of profit and loss 351240118 21.09.19.004
Less: ltems routed through SQCIE - 4,13.04,825
Closing balance 63,60,50,638 28,47 90,522

1, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehru Nagar,

Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15.




IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Accompanying notes fo the financial statements

(Unless atherwise stafed, all amounts are in Indion Rupees)

Note Neo. |Particulars as af March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020

B. Equity Companent of Preference Shares

1) OCCPs (Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares)
Opening 231,607 2,31.601
Amount reclossified os Equity on conversion of QCCPS to Equity Shares - -
Equity Companent- % Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs, 10/-
Each*

* The difference betwaen the fair value of OCCPS shares on the date of issue /
madification and the fransaction price is recognised as a deemed asquity

companent by the promaters. Estimation of fair value - For computation of the

fair value benelit, the company has estimated the fair value of the financial

liakility on the date of issue [ medification by considering comparable market

interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances relevant to the company.

Closing Balance 2,31.601 2,31,601
i) Non Cumulalive Reedemable Preference Shares

Opening 17,32,38,877 58,97.903
Equity Component of non-cumulafive redeemable preference shares 37575166 16,73.40,374
Clesing Balance 21,08,14,043 17.32,38.877
Cleosing balance (i+ii) 21.10.45.644 17.34.70.478

C. ltems of OCI - Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net of lax effect

Opening (471,260 (93,207)
Remeasurement of the net defined benafit fability/asset, net of tax effact* (1.75,675) {3.98.053)
Closing balance (4.66,935) (4.91.250)

*Remaasurement of defined benefit plans represents acturial gain and losses

and returns on plan assets [excluding intetest income|,

D. Securities Fremium

Opening Balance 1,85.74.149 -
Addifion dunng the year 2.48.,08,555 1.87.50,000
Less: Stamp duty expense on shares (11,27 885) (1.75.851)
Closing Balance 4,22,54819 1.85.74,14%
Total Reserves BB B4 84164 47,63.43,.889

14 Nan- current financial liabilities : Borrowings
14A{Non-Current

Secured (canied at amortized cost)$
Rupee Term loans from banks 1.41.47 49,679 1.29,43,39,479

Unsecured

Preference shares

liakility component 10% Non cumulative Redeemable Praference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 16.70,68.891 15,49.09,118
1.58,18,18,590 1,44,92,48,597
148 |Cument

Secured (carried al amortized cost)s
Rupee Term loans from banks#
Current Maturties of Rupae Term Loan from Banks 5.16.94,002 -
5,16,94,002 i

7, Heritaga
Chambers,

k Nehru Nagar,
Ambawadi




IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notfes fo the separate financial statements

|Unless otherwse stafed. ol amaunts are in Indian Fupees)

Note it lpid i For the year ending | For the year ending
No. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
20 Revenve from Operations
Sala of Goods
CNG Sales {Gross of Taxes) 1.63,61,11,492 1.47 37,794,634
PNG Sales 44,09,23,493 17.06,32,714
3ale of Services
Connection Income 1.35,29,995 1.05.41.536
Other Operating Revenues 75,13,711 16,01,351
2,11,80.88,4%1 1,65,65,70,235
21 Other Non-operating Income
Gain on remesurement of financial Assets 3,056,874 =
Interest Income 70,256,230 46,93,141
73,3304 44,93.141
22 Cost of Natural Gas and other Operating Cost
Natural Gas 77,08,55375 67.76,03,134
HCV Transportation Cost 13,08,21,601 B.71.95.830
CNG Station Electncity Cost 5.31,83,530 4,46,19.543
CNG Station Rent . .
CNG Kifs 26,115 1.04.440
O&M Spares and Cansumables 65,79,608 12.56,010
Q&M Cost 7.79.29.414 5.20,44,934
1,03,93,95,643 86,28.23.913
23 Changes in inventories of Natural Gas
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in frade and work in progress - Natural Gas
Inventory at the beginning of the ysar 18,68,615 13.73.032
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 20,464,540 18.68.615
(1.96,025) (4,95,583)
24 Employee Benefits Expense
Solaries, wages and bonus 3,55.25.066 2.97.38.761
Company's contribution fo provident & other funds 18,92,218 13.53.994
Leave Encashment and Gratuity (Refer note 31) 30,17.12¢9 16,863,960
Staff welfare expenses §,73,304 16,12,245
411,072,717 3,43.68,962
25 Finance Costs
Bank Charges 162,153 291,709
Other Finance Charges 2.7614,973 1.46.31.471
Interest Cost 10,70,58,769 6.38,04,749
Unwinding of Inferest Cost- Secunty Depasit 18,34,404 11,230,797
Unwinding of Interest Cost- Lease 45,96,909 38,66,593
Interast Cosi- Preference Shares- IndAS Impact 1.55,90,529 1.18.45,252
Amortisafion of Transaction cost af borawings 16,92,021 1087015
15,85,51,758 9.66,58,584
24 Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Depreciation of tangible assets {refer note 3.1} 10,72,98,031 8.07.36315
Amartisation of intongible assets (reter note 3.3) 1,27,03,024 1,10,69 400
12,00,01,055 9.18,05,715
27 Other Expenses
Adverlisemen! and Marketing Expenses 43,29,707 44,112,597
Statutary Audit Fees 12,68,500 885000
Business Promotion Expenses 21.42.434 2494378
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 34.00,000 21,72,550
(refer note 42)
Director's Sitting Fees 18,00,000 22.40,000
Insurance Cost 49,78,072 30.44.334
Legal and Professional Charges 92,886,712 2,38,40,452
Managerial Remuneration 74.71,72% 88,14,654
Rent 17,93,103 11.07.758
Stamp Duty Expense 4,09,200 42,15,105
Security Expense 44,31,194 41,4768
Tender Fees - 5.62.360
Travelling. Lodging and Boarding 28,82,990 47,768,410
Vehicle Hire Charges 91,49,034 7520514
Otiher Expenses 2,09,07.477 1.15.73.546
8,32,50,852 8,18,09,654
28 Tax Expense
Comporate Tax- Current 8,81,00,000 4,26,03,832
Corporate Tax- Previous year 17,86,430 -
Defered Tax 1,97.24,839 596.17,521
{Refer nole 35)
10,96,11,269 10,22,21,353
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Financial risk management:

The Companies activilies expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk & muarket risk. This note explains the
sources of risk which the enfity is exposed to & how the entity manages the risk & the related
impact in the financial statements. The Companies risk management is done in close co-
ordination with the board of directors & focuses on actively securing the Companies short,
medium & long-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial markets, Long-
term financial investments are managed fo generate lasting returns. The Company does not
actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it wrile
opfions. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described
below:

(i} Creditrisk:

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to setfie their
obligations as agreed. The Company is exposed to creditrisk from frade receivables, bark
deposils & other financial assets.

Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence, there is no
significant credit risk on such fixed deposits.

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party, taking into
account the financial condition, current economic frends, & analysis of historical bad debis
& ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set accordingly.

The Company frades with recognized & credit worthy third parties. Itis the Companies policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verificafion
procedures. In addition, frade receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis with
the resultthat the Companies exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis formajor
clients. In addifion, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homaogenous
groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculationis based on exchange losses
historical data. Also, the Company does not enter into sales transaction with customers
having credit loss history.

There are no significant creditrisks withrelated parties of the Company. Adequate expected
creditlosses are recognized as per the assessments.

The history of rade receivables shows no allowance forbad & doubtful debts.

Ageing of Trade Days TOTAL

Receivables 0-180 180-365 Above 365

As at 31 March 2021 10,52,10,440 - -| 10,52,10,440

As at 31 March 2020 4,21,53,585 - -| 42153585
(i) Liguidity risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able fo settle or meel its
obligations on lime or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from
obligations on accouni of financial liabilities - borrowings, frade payables & other financial
liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the cash flow
thal is generated from operafions. The Company believes that the working capital is
sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The
Company closely monitorsits liquidity position & maintains adequate source of funding.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities:

The fables below analyse the Companies financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
pased on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosedin the table are the contractual undiscounied cash flows. Balances due within 12
maonths equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Chambers,
Nehiu Nagar,
Ambawadi




As at 313t On 6 mths or 6-12 1-2 vrs 25 yrs More than 5
March, 2021 demand less mihs T yr yrs
Bomowings

|other than
redesmable ) 1.72,31,334 | 3,44.62,668 | 6.89,25,336 | 39,73.88,872 94,84,35,497

preference
shares)

Redeemable
preference = 3 = = - 16,70,68.891

shares

Trade payables - 10,06.00,249 . - = 2

Other Cumrent 2.97.23,684
Liabilities T

%‘gﬁg’;mm' -| 287417508 | 2108570 1893558 68,33,430 4,12,83,791

TOTAL - | 43.49,72,777 | 3,75,71,237 | 7,08,18,894 | 40,42,22,302 1,15,67,88,174

GRAND TOTAL 2,10,43,73,383

As at 31+ On 6 mths or 6-12 1-2yrs 2-5yrs | Morethan 5
March, 2020 demand less miths yIs

5,02,45,619 | 32,79,19.010 91.61,74,850

Baorrowings = -
(otherthan
redeemable
preference
shares)

11,75,76.298

Redesmable - - 3.73,32,820
preference
shares

Trade = 7.21,01,254 - 5 - -
payables

Other Cument - 1.64,12,520 - - = -
Liobilities

Otherfinancial - 15.86,76,587 | 1,48,07.681 37,75,571 52.65,380 10,79,42,860
liabilities

TOTAL - 24,71,90,361 | 1,48,07,681 | 9,13,54,010 | 33,31,84,390 | 1,14,16,94.008

GRAND TOTAL 1,82,82,30,450

(iv] Markef risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices—such as toreign exchange rates, interest
rates & equity prices — will affect the Companies income or the value of ifs holdings of
financial insfruments.

(v) Foreignexchange risk:

The Company isnot directly exposed fo foreign exchange risk as no direct foreign currency
fransactions are entered into.

(vi] InteresiRate Risk:

Interest rate riskis the risk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of a financialinstrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interestrates. The Com panies exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Companiss long-term debl
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Companiesinvestments infixed deposits are at flixedinterest rates.

The exposure of the Companies borrowing fo interest rate changes at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
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30.

As at 315t As at 31st

Particulars March, 2021 March, 2020

Variable rate instruments

- 2,58,68,946 2,67,05,548

Financial Liabilities 146,64,43,701 | 1.29,43.39 479

Fixed Rate instruments

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities 36.63.74.101 | 15,49,09.118

Inferestrate variation Change Impact Impact
Seormris:] {(+] 0.50% 72,02,874 63,38,170
Scenario-2 (-) 0.50% (72,02,874) (63,38,170)

Capital Management:
The company objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their abilily to continue as a
going concern so thal they can continue to provide returns for shareholders & benefits for other
stakeholders, & maintain an optimal structure fo reduce the cost of capital.

Netl Debt = Total term loan borrowings less cash & cash equivalents including current investments

Total 'equity’ means share capital issued (Equity Shares & Preference Shares) & accumulated
reserves.,

As at 31 As at 31+
Partic ulars March, 2021 March, 2020
Tolal borrowings 1,46,64,43,701 | 1,29,43,39,479
Less:cash & cash equivalents & Balance with Banks 44,33,69,531 19,02,47,222
Net debt 1,02,30,74,170 | 1,10,40,92,257
Total equity 1.31,76.27,552 88,99,73.321
Nel Debl fo Equity Ratio 0./8 1.24

Loan Covenants:

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, Ine Company isrequiredto comply any 2 of the
following financial covenants failing which penal interest as prescribedin the facility agreement
shallapply. The Financial Covenants shall be lested at the end of each Fiscal Year based on the
cerlificationof the Auditor.

a) Gross DSCR-1.10
b) Interest Coverage ratio- 1.25
c) FACR = [Net Property, Plant and Equipment/ Loan Quistanding)- 1.25

The first testing of financial covenants will be done for the first full operational year post the
commencement of commercial operalions of the Project, i.e. based on audited financials for
Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2023.

7, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehru Nagar,




31. Employee Benefits:

(i)  Short term emplovee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefifs. Benefits such as Salaries, incentives & allowances,
short terms compensated absences, etc., & the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are
recognisedin the year in which the employee renders the related service.

(il Longterm emplovee benefits

(a)  Gratuity (Unfunded):

The Coempany provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of
Gratuity Ach, 1972. Employeeswho are in confinuous service for a period of 5years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on refirement/termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proporfionately for 15 days
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded
plan.

Particulars

For the year
ended 31¢!
March, 2021

For the year
ended 315!
March, 2020

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation:

Present Value of Benefit Obligation al the Beginning of
the Period

21,26,57%

9,52,782

Interest Cost

146,096

74,126

Current Service Cost

2,08,310

542,174

Past Service Cost

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

[Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Licbilities Extinguished on Setflement)

(Benefil Paid Directly by the Fmployer)

(Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Fxchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due fo
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Financial Assumptions

(56,409)

3,27,002

Actuarial (Gains)/Lasses on Obligations - Due to
Experience

7,23,344

2,30,495

Present Value of Benefit Obligalion at the End of the
Period

38,47,920

21,26,57%

7, Heritage
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Particulars

Forthe year
ended 31st
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2020

Table Showing Change inthe Fair Value of Plan Assels:

Fair Value of Plan Assetsat the Beginning of the Period

Interest income

Contributions by the Employer

Expected Contribulions by the Employees

Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions

(AssetsTransferred Oul/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

(Assels Distributed on Setllements)

Effects of Asset Celling

The Effectof Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Relurn on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Amount Recognizedin the Balance Sheet:

(Present Value of Benefit Obligalion ai the end of The
Period)

[38,47,920)

(21,26,579)

Fair Value of Plan Assels at the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))

(38,47,920

(21,26,579)

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Bolance Sheet

(38,47,920)

(21,26,579)

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
for Current Period:

Current Service Cost

2.08,310

542,174

Net Interest Cost

1,46,096

/4,126

Past Service Cost

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Expenses Recognized

10,54,406

6,16,300

Expenses Recognizedin the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) for Current Period:

Acluarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period

666,935

557,497

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Change in Asset Ceiling

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognizedin
OoC|

666,935

6,116,065

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liability

21,26,579

2.52,782

Expenses Recagnized in Statement of Profitor Loss

10,54,406

6,16,300

Expenses Recognizedin OCI

666,935

557,497

Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In

1, Heritage
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Turnover

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31¢
March, 2021 March, 2020
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out = =
(Benefit Paid Directly by Ihe Fmployer) - -
(Employer's Contribution) -
Net Liability/[Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheel 3,847,920 21,246,579
Assumptions:
No of Aclive Members 94 69
Per Month Salary For Active Members 23,13,900 16,20,661
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 20 21
Obligation
Average Expected Fulure Service 22 23
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 38.47,920 21,26,579
Rate of Discounting 6.95% 687%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employmenl Indian Indian
Assuredlives | AssuredLives
Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - -
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the
Employer:
Projected Benefits Payable in Fuiure Years From the
Date of Reporting
15t Following Year 40,275 2,948
2nd Following Year 57,074 25,604
3rd Following Year 71,804 36,451
4th Following Year 92,094 45,948
5th Following Year 102,695 56,523
Sum of Years 6To 10 606,107 333,071
Sum of Years 11 & above 1.59,39.378 89,98,750
Sensitivity Analysis:
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 38,47.920 21,264,579
Delta Etfect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (6,24,523) (3,55,778)
Della Eftect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 786,828 4,49,748
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 748,034 4,44,463
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rale of Salary Increase (6,29,505) (3,58,375)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee (50,291) (46,860
Turnover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 31,838 48.664

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumplions occurring at the end of the reporfing period, while

holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may nol be representative of the actual
change in the projected benefit obligation as il s unlikely thal the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of ane another as some of the assum ptions may

be correlated.

},,




Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the
projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method al the end of the reporfing period, which is the same method as applied in
calculating the projected benefil obligation as recognisedin the balance sheet.

(b) Leave Encasnment [unfundedi:

The employess of the company are entifled lo leave as per the leave policy of the
company. The liability on account of accumulated leave as on last day of the
accounting year is recognised [net of the fair value of plan asselfs as at the balance
sheet date] at presentvalue ofthe defined obligation at the balance sheet date based
on the actuarial valuation carried out by an independent acluary using projected unit
creditmethod.

Particulars

For the year
ended 31+
March, 2021

For the year
ended 315t
March, 2020

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 18,67,750

the Period
Interest Cost

?,53,830

74,208
3,567,387

1.28,314
5,80,067

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost- Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During ) .
the Period

Past Service Cost- Vested Benefit Incurred During the 8
Period

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)
(Gains)/ Losses on Curtallment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Se tlement)

(73.213) (1,33,740)

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)
[Benefit Paid From the Fund) e =

The EffectOf Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to &
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (46.221)

Change in Financial Assumptions

274,643

Acluarial (Gains)/Lasses on Obligations - Due o 8.09.303

Experience

341,422

32,65,300

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the 18,67.750

Period
Change in the fair value of plan assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period . -

Interestincome - -

Contributions by the Employer
Expected Contribulions by the Employees

Assefs Transferred In/Acquisitions - =

(Assets Transferred Qul/ Divestments) - -

(Benefit Paid from the Fund) = .

Nehru Nagar,
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For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31+ ended 31t
Marech, 2021 | March, 2020
(Assets Disfributed on Settlements)
Effects of Asset Ceiling -
The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income z -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of ihe Period = -
Amount Recognizedin the Balance Sheet
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the (32.65.300) (18,67,750)
Period)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period = E
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (32,65,300) (18,67.750)
Unrecognized Past Service Costat the end of the _
Period
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheel (32,65,300) (18,67,750)
Expenses / [Incomes] recognised in the Statemenf of
Profit & Loss: ;
Current Service Cost 5,800,067 3,572,387
Net Interest Cost 1,28,314 74,208
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 7.63,082 6.16,065
Past Service Cost- Non-Vested Benefit Recognized = -
During the Period
Past Service Cost- Vested Benefit Recognized During =
the Period
(Expected Confributions by the Employees) - E
(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements = -
Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Change in Asset Ceiling = -
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 14,71,463 10,47.660
Balance Sheet Reconciliation:
Opening Net Liability 18.67,750 $,53.830
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 14,711,463 10,47,660
Nef Liability/(Asset) Transfer In - =
Nef (Liability]/Asset Transfer Out {73.213) (1,33,740)
(Employer's Contribution) -
Nel Liability/[Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 32,65,300 18,67.750
Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet
date:
Expected Return on Plan Assets =
Rate of Discounting # 6.95% 687%
Rate of Salary Increase $ 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%
No of Active Members 24 69
Per Month Salary For Active Members 23,13,900 16,20,661
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBOY) 32,65,300 18,67,750
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) =

#The rate of discount is considered besed on market yield on Government Bonds having currency & ferms in
cansislence with the currency & terns of the post-employment benefil obligations

3 The esfimates of fulure salary increases are considered in acluarial valualion, taking inlo account inflation,
senionily, promotion & other relevant faclors such as supply & demand in the employment market,
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32.

Following is the disclosure relating to Joint Control entities:

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities pursuantto Para B14 of Ind AS 112:

Farm Gas Venuka
Particulars Private Polymers Pvt
Limited Lid
Year 2020-21 2020-21
Country of Incorporation India India
% of ownershipinterest 50% 50%
Current Assets 5.66,91,738 4.83,06,2964
Non Current Assets 6,02,58,815 8,53,32,341
Current Liabilities 34,27 .548 2,62.68,037
Non Current Liabilities - -
Income = =
Profit/(Loss) for the year (18,06,414) (10,61,568)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income = .
Confingent Liabilities - -
Capital Commitments 8,08,04,779 14,79,288
Farm Gas Venuvka
Particulars Private Polymers Pvt
Limited Ltd
Year 2019-20 2019-20
Country of Incorporation Indic Indic
% of ownership interest 50% 50%
Current Assets 19,47.563 10.42,851
Nan Current Assels 33,68,805 1151503
Current Liabilities 35,69,057 14,59,871
Non Current Liabilities - -
Income = =
Profit/(Loss) for the year (2.00.569) (2.14,397)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Total Comprehensive Income -
Conlingent Liabilities -
Capital Commitments 1,27.85,934 -
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33. Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Name of he Related party & Nature of the Related Party Relationshio:

Name of the Person/Entity

i Holding Company (i) Cadila Pharmaceuticals | td

ii. loint Control entities (i) Farm Gas Private Limited

(i) Venuka Polymers Private Limited

iii. Associate Enterprise (i) Enertech Distribution Management
Pvt Ltd

(i) Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvi Ltd

iv. Fellow Subsidiary Company (i) Casil Heallh Products Limited

V. Enterprises Significantly Influenced by | (i) IRM Pvt Lid

Directors or their relatives or Key | (i) IRM Enterprise Pvt Ltd

Management Personnel (iii) Sanguine Management Services Pvt
Ltd

{iv) IRM Trust

(vl Mauklika Ventures LLP

(vi) Shree Saraswati Education Sansthan
(Indrashil University)

[vii)N M Sadguru Water

Development Foundation

Mr. Maheswar Sahu (Chairman)

5r. No. | Nature

andl

vi. Key Management Personnel (i)

(i) Dr.Raijiv I. Modi (Director)

(iii)  Mr. Amitabha Banerjee [Director)
(iv) Mr. Vinod Jain (Director|

(v]  Mr. Badri Mahapatra (Director)
(vi) Mr. Karan Kaushal (CEQ)

(vii) Mr. Harshal Anjaria (CFO)

(viii) Ms. Shikha Jain [CS)

(b) Iransactions with relatedparties (Ami. in Rs.):

Sr. Nature of Transaction | Name of the Related Party Forthe year | Forthe year
No. 2020-21 2019-20
i For Goads Cadila Pharmaceuticals [ td 13.01.200 1,43,64,191
ocuedienices  prg 3105288 | 31,0588
Venuka Polymers Pvt Lid (43.200] (14,400)
Sanguine Management - 23,460,000
Services PvtlLtd
Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvi 4,27.56,890 1,87,61,328
Ltd
Casil Health Products Ltd T2 32,623
IRM Enterprise Pvi Ltd - 1,180
IRM Pvt Lid 1,47,588 483,066
ii. Reimbursement of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid (40,970) -
PSR Mahaswar Sahu 10,535 12,193
Venuka Polymers Pvt Lid (36,28,412) (11,80,031)
Mauktia Ventures LLP (1,215] (42,270}
Farm Gas Pvt Lid (17.11,828) (10.05,463)
IRM Trust (2,65,800) (5.89,747)
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Sr. Nature of Transaction | Name of the Related Party Forthe year | Forthe year
No. 2020-21 2019-20
ii. Subscription of Equity | Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 2,46,37,728 3,82,50,000
Shares (incl. securifies
premium) IRM Trust ?1,78,763 1.42,50,000
Enerfech Disfribution 97.36,774 2,25,00,000
Management Pvt Ltd
iv. Subscription of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 3.41,44,410 | 11,99.74.910
Freference Shares
V. Director Sitfing Fees Maheswar Sahu 6,80,000 11,60,000
Badri Mahapatra 2,00,000 8,40,000
vi. Managerial Maheswar Sahu 46,43,378 45,98,023
Commission
Vil Managerial Key Management Personnel 28,28,351 42,116,641
Remuneration (Mr. Karan Kaushal, Mr.
Harshal Anjaria and Ms.
Shikha Jain)
viii. Corporate Social Shree Saraswati Education 20,00,000 21,72,550
Responsibility Sansthan (Indrashil
Expense University)
N M Sadguru Water and 3.00,000 -
Development Foundation
Qutstanding IRM Pvt Ltd 17,472 37,904
- Retyabie Casll Health Products Lid 26,616 3,108
IRM Trust 17,472 1,34,516
Enertech Fuel Solutions Pyt 12.33.044
Lid
IRM Enlerprise Pvt Ltd - 1,180
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1.19.88,000
. Outstanding IRM Trust 4,38,600 4,38,600
Seenipbies Venuka Polymers Pyl Lid 13703215 | 11.97.023
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 49.970 -
Mauktika Ventures LLP 44,185 42,270
Farm Gas Pvt Ltd 17,11.828 10.05,463
34.  Earnings PerShare:
Sr. Particulars uom For the year For the year
No. 2020-21 2019-20
Basic EPS
a | Profit after tax attributable to Equity Rs. 35,12,60,113 21,09,19,006
shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average number of Nos. 2,81,61,027 2,44.85,400
Equity shares outstanding during the
year
c | Value of equity share Rs. 12.47 B8.41
Diluted EPS
a | Profitafter tax attributable to Equity Rs. 35,12,60,113 21,09,12,006
Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average number of Nos. 281,641,027 2.44.85,400
7, Heritage Equity shares outstanding during the
Chambers, year
e ¢ | Value of equity share Rs. 12.47 8.61
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35.

Deferred Tax Assets/(liabilities):

(a] Breckup of DeferredTax Liabilities & Assels into major components of the respeclive balances ae

as under:
Particulars As at Change during As at
01.04.2020 the year 31.03.2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deprecialion 8.58,23,259 236,946,656 10.95.12.915
(a) 8.58,23,259 236,926,656 10,95,19.915

Deferred Tax Assets

Frovisionfor Retirement Benefits 10,05,373 785,024 17,720,397

Ind AS Adjustment 1,09.65,775 31.86,792 1.41,52 567
(b) 1,19.71,148 3971816 1,59,42,944

Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets 7,.38,52,111 1,97.24,839 9,35,76,950

(a-b)

(b) The Net Deferred Tax Liability of Rs. 1,97,24,839 [Previous Year: Rs, 5.96,17.571 (Deferred Tax
liabilities)] for the year has been providedin the Statement of Profit & Loss.

36,

(1)

(i)

(iii)

fiv)

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for):

Commitments

remaining to be executed on capital
accounf & not provided for (Net of
advance)

Sr. No. | Particulars For the year For the year
2020-21 2019-20
I Estimated amount of contracts 49,91,87,141 49.22,52,256

The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee for Loan faken by its Joint confrol Eniities as per
below information-

a. Corporate Guarantee issuedin favour of Banks towards Loan taken by Farm gas Private
Limited amounting to Rs. 33,54,00,000.
b. Corporale Guarantee issued in favour of Bank towards Loan taken by Venuka Polymers
Private Limited amounting to Rs. 17,14,00,000

The Company has executed long term supply contracts for natural gas having fake or pay(loP)
obligafions. The volume committed under such confractwhichis liable to TOP is 3902 m mbiu/day.
The Company is not foreseeing ToP liability under the long term contracts.

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issuedby Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board {(PNGRB)
for the geographical areas of Diu (UT of Diu & Daman) & Gir Somnath District (Gujarat), the

Company has submitted Performance Bank Guaraniee of Rs. 25 crores to PNGRB,

Nehru Nagar,
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37.  Paymentsto auditor(included in Other expensesunder note 27):

Particulars During the year During the year

2020-21 2019-20
For Statutory Audit (Incl GST) 12,68,500 8.85,000
For GST & Tax Audit (Incl GST) 3.05,620 246,620
For Certification & other reimbursements (incl. GST) 1,921,160 14,750

38.  Disclasure required under micro, small & medium enferprises development act, 2006 (the act) are

as follows:
Sr.No | Particulars As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
| Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as
at the end of the accounting year
a | Trade Payables 31,58,276 10,71,962
b | Payables for purchase of property, plant & equipment 80.55,750 2,31.31.641

2 Inierest due thereon rem aining unpaid to any supplier 5
as at the end of the accounting year

3 The amount of interest paid by the company in temms -
of section 16 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the accounting year

4 The amount of interest due & payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year] but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

o) The amount of inferest accrued & remaining unpaid at -
the end of the accounting year

& The amount of further interest remaining due & - =
payable even in the succeeding years, until such dale
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section23 of the Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2004

The above information regarding Micro enferprises & Small enterprises has been determined
based on information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

3%9.  The Company has taken working capital facilities from Barks which is secured as under:

a. Second charge on enfire movable & immovable assefs (both present & future) of the
Company.

b. First charge on current assets of the Company & TRA account (both present & future) on
pari passu basis o be shared with Term Loan lenders,

40. The Company has laken limits of Rs. 25 crores (non fund based) for issuance of PRG in favour of
PNGRB w.r.t CGD of Diu and Gir Somnath GA, The said limitsis secured as under-

a. Firstcharge (pari passu basis) on current assets, cash flow (incl TRA account], receivables
(both present & future) arising out of the project of Diu & Gir Somnath,

b.  First charge on entire movable & immaovable assels (incl intangible assetfs, goodwill,
uncalled capital, intellectual property) of the project of Diu & Gir Somnath (both present

& future).
b




41.

42,

Management has assessed the situation of Covid-19 based on the Internal and external
information available up to the date of approval of these financial results by the Board of Directors.
Management believes that the Impact of Covid-19 onits business, assets, internal financial confrols,
profitability and liquidity, both present and future, would be limited and there Is no indication of
any materialImpact on the carrying amounts of Deferred tax assels, Properly, Plant & Equipment,
tfrade receivables and other financial assets or any adverse impact on ability of the Company to
conlinue as a going concern. Considering the uncertainties prevailinginthe economic conditions
globally and in India, the eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from those-estimated as on the date of approval of these financial results and the
Company will closely monitor any material changes fo the economic environment and their
Impact on its business in the times to come.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities of the Com pany are generally
been carried ouf by making payment contribution to eligible Trusis. The Trusts carry out the CSR
activities as specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 on behalf of the Company.
During the year, Company was required to spend CSR expense of Rs, 30,892,241 (for March 31,
2020:Rs. 926,07 1) s per the requirements of section 1 35 of the Com paniesAct, 2013 & has spent
for the year 34,00,000(for March 31, 2020:Rs. 21 72.550),

Sr. No | Particulars Amount Amount yet to Total Rs.
Contributed be contributed
1 Construction/Acquisition of 20,00,000 - 20,00,000
any Assels
2 On purposes other than a 14,00,000 - 14,00,000
above
TOTAL 34.00,000 - 34,00,000

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Associates For & on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountanls
Registration No: 106625W

Fir

Har
Partner

Kejriwal

H“;:"';:“a-' M. Sahu Vinod Jain
:m:-wagaa' Chairman Director &M
Membership Number: 1 286 X3 \ Anmadabad-15. [; % / { \
P A /Q.\!.Iq'\'l@, /
Karan Kaushal Harshal Anjaria Shikha Jain
CEO CFO S5

Ahmedabad, Dated: 22nd Jung, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of IRM Energy Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IRM Energy Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its Joint Controlled entity (Joint Controlled Entity
together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year
then ended on that date, and a summary of significant aggcounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, of Consolidated profit, Consolidated
changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent w1th
the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our g
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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MUKXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | WWW.mmsco.in
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its Joint
Controlled entity companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the ather entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
orin aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ji

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one jointly controlled entity, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 11,69,50,553/- as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 5,084/- and net cash
flows amounting to Rs. 5,42,11,519/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss of
Rs. 18,06,414/- for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
in respect of one Joint controlled entity, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these jointly Controlled entity, and our report in terms of
sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly Controlled
entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors an the Consolidated financial statements and other financial information of the Joint Controlled
entity, we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as
it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of
our audit have been received from the branch not visited by us.

c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified 4
Section 133 of the Act;

Nehru Nagar,
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
Joint Controlled Entity incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory auditors of its Joint
Controlled entity companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

il. The Company has contracts as mentioned in note 36 including derivative contracts for which
there were no losses.

ili.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

UDIN: 21128670AAAABB9443
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“Annexure A” to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the IRM Energy Private Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its Joint Controlled entity, (‘Joint Controlled entity’ together referred to as
the “ Group”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Holding Company, Joint Controlled entity incorporated in India, as of the
date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and jointly Controlled entity companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
control based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India [ICAI]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its
Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.

Chambers,
Nehru Nagar,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Company and its Joint Controlled entity companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

UDIN: 21128670AAAABB9443
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

|Uniless otherwise stated all amounis ore i Indion Rupess)

Particulars Note No. wan ;"0';'1':" 31 | as ot March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assels
a) Property, plant and eguipment 31 2.30.79.87.650 1.82.01.80.733
b) Capital work-n-progress 32 19,70,16.6356 28.95,96.325
c} Intangibles assets 33 2,64,84,723 2,41,14,004
d) Right to Use Assets 34 7,14,48 841 6,27,33,982
e} Intangibles under Development 19.32,930 23,57.729
f] Financial assets
[i} Investments 44 6.13.76.901 15,00,000
{ii} Loans - =
{iii} Other financial assets 5 63,81,623 1,24,95,659
a) Other non-current assets & 22 60,23 464 13,49,32,489
h) Current Tax Asset (Nef) - -
2,89.86,72,770 2,41,79.11,122
Current assets
a) Inventories 7 80.48.074 69.49,186
b) Fnancial assets -
(il Investments 4B 1,37,.41.000 -
(i) Trade receivakbles 8 10,52,10,440 4,21,53,585
fii) Cash ond cash equivalents DA 2575,18,993 10.27.02,692
{iv] Bank bolances other than (i) above o8 18,58,50,538 8,75,44,530
(v] Loans " -
(vi) Other financial assets 10 1,94,87 323 1.42,09.88%
c) Other cunrent assels 11 2,15.44,194 2,30,99,777
61,14,40,562 27.66,59,659
Total Assets 3,51,01,13 332 2,69.45,70.781
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 12 2B8.992.94,710 27,12,50,000
) Other equity 13 88,60,55,06% 47,63,43,88%
[Total equity 1.17.60,49.779 74,75.93,889
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
al Fnancial Liabilities
(i} Borowings 14A 1.58,18.18,5%0 1.44.92,.48.597
(i) Trade payables = =
(i} Other financial liabilities 16A 19.93,05,210 12.17.91.492
b] Provisions 17A 70,03,574 39.52,373
) Deferred tax labilties (Nef) 19 9.35.76,951 7,38,52,112
1,88,17.04,325 1.64,88,44,574
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
[i) Borowings 148 5,16,94,002 -
fi) Trade payables 15 -
- total outstandirig dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,12,14,026 2,42,03,603
- total culstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 893,846,223 4,78.97.651
and small enlerprises 4
(i} Other financial labilities 14E 14.12,31,646 |6,86,76.587
b ] Provisions 178 1,079,646 41,257
c) Other curent habilities 18 2.97.23.4B6 1.64,12,520
d} Current tax labilities (Net) 1 2,90,00,000 4,09.00,000
45,23,59,229 29,81,32,318
Total Equity and Liabilitie: 3,51,01,13,332 2.69.45.70.781

See accompanying notes to the financial stolements

As per our report of even dale
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

firm Registration No: 106625V

Partner
Membership Mumber : 128670

Ahmedabad, Dated : A 0b ADa
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For and on behalf of the Board

ALY
i,
. Sahu Vinod lain
Chaimon Director
aran Kaushal Harshal Anjaria
CEO CFO

sh khﬁ;n

Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, Dated : 22nd June, 2021



IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Unless otherwize statad, all amaounts are in Indlan Rupeaes)

; For the year ending | For the year ending
racorrs e March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
|REVENUE :
Revenue from Operations 20 2,11,80,88,621 1,65,65,70,235
Other Non-operating Income 21 73,33,104 44,93,141
2,12,54,21,795 1,66,12,63,376
EXPENSES :
Cost of Natural Gas and other Operating Cost 22 1.03,93,95,643 86,28,23.913
Changes in Inventories of Finished goads, Work-in-progress and 23 [1,26,025) (4,95,583)
Stock-in-Trade
Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Naiural Gas 22,24,39 413 18,09,92,323
Employee Benefils Expense 24 4.11,07.717 3.43,68,962
Finance Costs 25 15,85,51,758 9.66,58,586
Depreciation and Amortisafion expense 26 12,00,01,055 2.18,05715
Other Expenses 27 8.32,50,852 8,18,09,656
1,66,45,50,413 1,34,79.63,572
Profit before Tax 46,08,71,382 31.32.99.804
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 28 8,98,86,430 4,27,63,276
- Deferred Tax 28 1,97.24,839 5.96.17.521
Profit for the year before share of profit/(loss) from loint Control 35,12,60,113 21,09,19,006
Entities
Share of profit/(lass) from Jaint Cantrol Entities (23,69,994) (2,59,103)
Profit for the year 34,88,90,117 21,06,59,903
Other Comprehensive income
i. fems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset 1,75,475 (5,57,497)
b. Income tax related to this items - 1,59,444
1.75.675 (3,98.053)
Total comprehensive income 34,87,14,442 21,10,57,956
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 12.38 8.61
Diluted 12.38 8.61
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even daie
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 1064625W _ﬁ
i ;
¢ o e o
Nahru Nagar, — =
Harsh Kejriwal am:a:ﬂ:'“ M(ﬁhu Vinod Jain
Partner ra— Chairma Director

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : .Z.‘L'ﬁb ')*9'“

e

Karan Kavushal

CEC

Ahmedabad, Dated : 22nd June, 2021
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Harshal Anjaria
CFO
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Shikha Jain
Company Secretary



IRM ENERGY PVT LTD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT MARCH

31, 2021

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Indian Rupees|

Membership Number ; 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : &4 (640

forarfioeels
Karan Kaushal
CEO

Ahmedabad, Dated

Particulars For the period ending
Mar- 2021 Mar- 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before fax and exfraordinary items 46,06,95,707 31.32,99.804
Adjustrment for: -
Interest Income (70,24.230) (46,93,141)
Interest and Finance Charges 15,85,51,758 7.66,58,586
Provision for Expenses 30,571,201 3.20,45.231
Provision for Income (18,32,733) (48,113,674
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 12,00,01,055 2,18,05715
Operating profit before working capital changes 73,34,40,758 52.43,02,519
(Increase]/Decrease in Other Assets (10.61,59,396) {7.04,66.162
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventorias (10,98.888) (42,84,850)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (6.30.56,855) (1,24,21,717)
Increase/|Decrease) in Trade Payables 2,84,%8,995 2,49,38,989
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 6,32,78,564 2,80.82,789
Increase/[Decrease) in Other Liabilities 12,12,03.694 1,30.31,302
Cash generated from operafion 77,61,06,872 50,31,12,871
Direct taxes paid (incl TDS) (9.14,65.832) (5.83.84,408)
Cash flow before extracrdinary items 68,46,41,041 44,47,28.463
Net cash from operating actlivities (a) 68,46,41,041 44,47 28,463
B. Cas ing activities
Interest Income 64,62,311 49,74,873
Investment (7.62,67,000) (15,00.000)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (incl. capital work in progress) (46.43.86,032) [75.90,45.917)
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (53.41,90,721) (75.55,71,044)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Preceeds from equity shares issued 4,35,53.265 7.50,00.000
Proceeds from Banks Borrowings 17.21,04,222 31,73.76,220
Interest and Finance Cost [13.66,72,299) {2.00,33.429)
Lease cost (%3.29,724) (84,17.156)
Stamp duty on issue of shares (11,27.885) {1.75.851)
Dividend (incl. Dividend Distribution fax) - 14,13,04,825)
Proceeds from preference shares issued 3.41,44,410 10,08.49.210
Net cash from financing activities (c) 10,24,71,989 35,32,94,869
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) 25,31,22,308 4,24,52,288
Cash and cash eguivalents — opening balance 19.02,47,222 14,77.94,234
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 44,33,69.530 19,02,47,222
As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: lOéét25_W ._V.\
1, Hesitage %ﬂ ﬂ%
Chambers, ~
Harsh Kejriwal N:::.T:;ih M. 61_; Vinod Jain
Partner Ahmedabad-15. Chairman Director
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Harshal Anjaria
CFO
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Shikha Jain
Company Secretary

+22nd June, 2021
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notesto the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Pvt.Ltd. wasincorporated on 01st December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking
or carry out the business of storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or
incidental to the laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas Distribution Networks. The
Company is currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha Districtin the State of Gujarat, Fatehgarh
Sahib in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in the State of Gujarat as per the
authorisation granted by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also Functiond
Currency of the Company. The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 22nd June, 2021.

2. Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribedunder section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. The
significant accounting policies that are used in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below:

2.1 Historical cost convention

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention &
on an accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at fair value as required by
relevant Ind AS:

e Financial assets & financial liabilities measured initially at fair value (refer accounting
policy on financial Instruments};
e Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefits.

2.2  Current vs Non-Current Classification

The Company presentfs assets & liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An assetis treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumedin normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realisedwithin twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash eqguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liabilityis freated as current when:

It is expected to be settledin normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the setflement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

- 8 & @

All other liakilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets & liabilities are classified as non-current assets & liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realisation
in cash & cash equivalents.

Nehru Nagar,

Ambawadi
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Principles of equity accounting for Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statement of IRM Energy Private Limited (‘the Company'] includes
financial statements of IRM Energy Private Limited, Farm Gas Private Limited (‘the Joint Contral
Entity") and Venuka Polymers Private Limited ('the Joint Control Entity"), in both of which the
Company owns 50% paid up share capital, collectivelyreferred to as 'the Group'.

The consolidatedfinancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
Joint ventures

Interesfs in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being
recognised at costin the consolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the share of profit/ loss of
each of the associate companies, joint venture (the loss being restricted to the cost of
investment) has been added to / deducted from the cost of investments.

Equity accounting

Under the equity methed of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereaftertorecognise the Company's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested forimpairmentinaccordance
with the policy describedin note 32 below.

Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgementin
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas invelving ahigher degree
of judgement or complexity, or area where assumptions & estimates are significant to these
Consclidated Financial Statements are disclosed below.

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with the Accounting
Standards generally accepted in India requires, the management to make estimates &
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets & liabilities & disclosure of contingent
liakilities as the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements & reported amounts of revenues
& expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to
accounting estimatesisrecognised prospectivelyincurrent & future periods.

When preparing the Consclidated Financial Statements, management undertakes a number of
judgments’, estimates & assumptions about the recognition & measurement of assets, liabilities,
income & expenses. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the following
judgments have been made apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognisedin the financial information. Judgements are based
on the informationavailable at the date of balance sheet.

i) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax
positions.

(i) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent a significant
proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciationis derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful
life & the expected residual value at the end of its life. Management reviews the
residual values, useful lives & methods of depreciation of property, plant &
equipment at each reporting period end & any revision to these is recognised
prospectivelyincurrent & future periods. The lives are based onhistorical experience
with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their
life, such as changes in technology.

(iii) Employee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making judgments about
the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary increase, etc. Which significantly affect
the working of the present value of future liabilitieson account of employee benefits
by way of defined benefit plans.

1, Heritage
Chambars,
Nehru Nagar,
Ambawadi
Ahmedabsd-15.

Impairment of assets & investments: Significant judgment is involvedin determining
the estimated future cash flows from the investments, Property, Plant & Equipment

L
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& Goodwill to determine its value in use to assess whether there is any impairment
inits carryingamount as reflectedinthe financials.

(v) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temparary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The
management assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising
deferred tax assefs.

(vi) Recoanition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case of customers
where meter reading dates for billing is not matching with reporting date, the gas
sales between last meterreading date & reporting date has been accrued by the
company based on past average sales. The actual sales revenue may vary
compared to accrued unbilled revenue so included in Sale of natural gas &
classified under current financial assets.

(vii) Recoanition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition & measurement of
other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an cutflow of

resources & on past experience & circumstances known at the balance sheet date.
The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure
so provided & included as liability.

(viii) Leases: The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies fo be a lease as per

the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease tem
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease,
together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certainto exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not 1o exercise
that option.

In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend a lease, or not fo exercise an optlion to terminate a lease, it considers all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
fo terminate the lease.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease. The discountrate is generally based on the incremental borrowing
rate.

Impact of COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in Joint
control entity. In developing the assumptions relatfing to the possible future uncertainties in the
global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval
of these Consolidated Financial Statements has used internal and external sources ofinformation
including related information and economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity
andlysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount
of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's Consclidated
Financial Statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Property, Plant & Equipment

i) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less
accumulated depreciation.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly attributable &
ascertainable, to completing the project. These costs include expenditure of pipelines,
plant & machinery, cost of laying of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning & testing
charge, detailed engineering & interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
such assets. The gas distribution networks are treated as commissioned when supply of
gas commencaes fo the customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to anitem of property, plant and Eguipment is added
to itsbook value anly ifitincreases the future economic benefits from the existing asset
pbeyond ifs previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses incurred

A
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Nahru Nagar,
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towards normal repairs and mainfenance of the existing property, plant and
Equipment (including cost of replacing parts) are charged to profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.

interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of Property, Plant
and Equipment for the period of consfruction is added to the cost of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Preoperative expensesincluding trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised.

Assetsinstalled at customer premises, includingmeters &regulators where applicable,
are recognised as property plant & equipment if they meet the definition provided
under Ind AS 16 subject to materiality as determined by the management & followed
consistently.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which are yet to be
commissioned & capital inventory, which comprises stock of capital items/construcfion
materials at respective city gas network.

All the direcily identifiable & ascerfainable expenditure, incidental & related to
construction incurred during the period of consfruction on a project, {ill it is
commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP) & after commissioning the
sameis transferred / allocated to the respective "Property, Plant and Equipment”,

Further, advances paid fowards the acquisition of property, plant & equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under
other non- current assefs.

The capitalisationrate of 8.14% is used to determine the amount of Borrowing cost that
is capitalised to the qualifying asset.

Capital work in progress and current year fixed assefs includes borrowing cost
capitalised on gudlifying assets amounting to Rs. 2.87,02,760 (31# March, 2019: Rs.
3,19,25,350}

Depreciationis provided as follow:

+ Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated over the permissible useful life
specifiedinSchedule |l pursuant to section 123(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
as per Straight line method", read with the following notes:

o The Schedule specifies useful life of Pipelinesas 30 years for those used
in exploration, production & refining of oil & gas. The Company has
cansidered the useful life of 25 yrs for the pipelines used in city gas
distribution business.

o City gas stations, skids, pressure regulating stations, meters &
regulators, Compressors, Dispensers, Cascades are estimated to have
useful life of 15 years based on technical assessment made by
technical expert & management.

o The management believes that these useful lives are realistic & reflect
fairapproximation of the period overwhich the assets are likely to be
used. The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each
financial year end & revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the
unamortised depreciable amount (remaining net value of assets) is
charged over the revisedremaining useful life.

For the purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value for
Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of asset
concerned.

o

» Depreciationonitems of property, plant & equipment acquired / disposed-off
during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of
addition / disposal.

» Depreciationon additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made during the

period having costof Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on pro rata basis with
reference to the date of addition.

R



(iv)

(v

« Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit & loss under
Cther Expenses/Income.

Useful life of assets are considered as mentioned in Companies Act, 2013 under
Schedule Il. However, useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the
period for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor of payment is not
specified by the authorities, the useful life of such ROW charges is considered as 10
years. Cost incurred towards purchase of software is amortised on Straight line methed
overits useful life of 5 yrs as estimated by the management.

Intangible Assefts:

Intangible Assets includes amounf paid towards obtaining Right of Way (ROW)
permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of developing software for
internal use. The Company capitalises software as Intangible Asset where itis expected
to provide future enduring economic benefits. Cost associated with maintaining
software programmes are recognised as expenses as & when incurred.

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain orloss arising on de-
recagnition of the intangible asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds & the carrying amount of the intangible asset) is charged fo revenue
in the income statement when the intangible assetis derecognised.

2.6  Foreigncurrency fransactions

Foreigncurrency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of such
transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are franslated at the rates
of exchange prevailing ot the date of the Balance Sheet. Gain/Loss arising on acceunt of
differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/translation of monetary assets &liabilities cre
recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. unless they are considered as an adjustment to
borrowing costs, in which case they are capitalised along with the borrowing cost.

2.7 Revenue recognition

fi)

7, Heritage
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Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The
Company recognises revenue whenthe amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company & no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from the
sale of goods /services & regarding its collection. The Company bases ifs estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
& the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of Natural Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by metered/assessed
measurements as no significant uncertainty exists regarding the measurability or
collectability of the sale consideration. Sales are billed bi-monthly for domestic
customers, monthly/fortnightly for commercial & non-commercial customers &
fortnightly for industrial customers as the timing of the transfer of risks & rewards varies
depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement. Revenue on sale of
Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) isrecognized on sale of gas fo consumers from retail
outlets.

The amount recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty & exclusive of Sales
Tax /Value Added Tax (VAT) & Goods & Service Tax & is net of frade discounts or
guantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised as the related supply of natural gas are performed &
revenue from the end of the last billing cycle to the Balance Sheet date.

The amounts collected towards connection charges from certain domestic customers
are "Non-Refundable Charges". Accordingly, the same are recognized as revenue ds
& when the Company receives the amount from the customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes amount
“refundable” in nafure. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a liability under head

H
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2.9

2.10
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“Depositfrom Customers” inthe balance sheet,
(ii) Interestincome is recognised on time proportionate method (on accrual basis).

(ifi) Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as
to its defermination orrealisation exists.

Borrowing Costs:

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to the date of commissioning.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily fake a substantial period of time to get
ready for their infended use or sale.

(ii) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are
incurred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets:

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are impaired
by comparing carrying amount of each asset &/ or cash generating unit to the recoverable
amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in use is determined from the
present value of the estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued af lower of cost
& net redlizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost method.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc] are valued af lower
of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance withthe Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or credit reflecting the tax effects
of timing differences betweenaccountingincome & taxable income for the period). Income tax
expenses are recognised in statement of profit or loss except tax expenses related to items
recognised directly in reserves (including statement of other comprehensive income) which are
recognisedwith the underlying items.

i) The Income Tax expense or credit for the periodis the tax payable on the current periodss
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets & liabilities attributable to temporary differences & fo
unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per the provisions of the
income Tax Act, 1941, as amended from fime to time. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable fax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for currentincome taxes are presentedin the balance sheet
after offssetting advance tax paid & income tax provision arising in the same tax
jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where the Company is able fo & intends fo
settle the asset & liability on a net basis.

(i) DeferredTax is provided infull on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of
the assets & liabilifies & their carrying amounts in Consolidated Financial Statements at
the reporting date. Deferred tax are recognised in respect of deductible tem porary
differences being the difference between taxable income & accounting income that
originate in one period & are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.,
the carryforward of unused tax losses & the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period & are expected fo apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
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leases:

settled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences & unused
tax losses onlyifitis probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offsetcurrent tax assets & liabilities & whenthe deferredtax balancesrelate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets & tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset & intends either to settle on a net basis, or fo realise the
asset & settle the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except fo the extent that it relates
to itemsrecognisedin other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directlyin equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provision of
the Income Tax Act, 1941 is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probakle
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be
utilised. The said assetis created by way of credit to the statement of profit & loss & shown
under the head deferred tax asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetsis reviewed at eachreporting date &reduced
to the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred fax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date & are recognised o the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset o be
recovered.

The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The
Company assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a initid
application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right fo control the use of an identified asset for aperiod of time in exchange
for consideration.To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asseft (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use
[ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which itis a
lessee, except forleases withaterm of 12 months orless (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certainlease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it
isreasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on the initidl
application date, that is arrived based on incremental borrowing rate on the initid
application date. They are subsequenily measured at cost less accumulated
depreciationand impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the initial application date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are
evaluated forrecoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined onan individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assefs. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the
asset belongs.

The lease liabilityis initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments on the date of initial application. The lease payments are discounted

3



using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease licbilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment fo the related ROU asset if the Company changes its
assessment of whether itwill exercise an extension or a terminationopfion. Lease liability
and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as o finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified
as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head
lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevantlease.

2.13 Employee Benefits:

Liabilitiesforwages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 menths affer the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognisedinrespect of employees'services up to the end of the reporting & are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit abligations inthe balance sheet.

(i)

(it}

(i)

Defined Contribution Plan:

Confribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accruedin accordance
with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatery provident fund authorities
[(Government administered provident fund scheme). The Group does not carry any other
obligationapart from the monthly contribution.

The Company's contributionis recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss
during the periodin which the employee renders the relatedservice.

Defined Benefit Plan:

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees
in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, through an approved Gratuity
Fund. The Gratuity Fund is separately administered through aTrust/Scheme. Contributions
inrespect of gratuity are made to the approved Gratuity Fund.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
gratuity planis the present value of the defined benefit plan cbligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets. The Liabilities with regard to the
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent
Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to the market vields at the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation.

The net interest costin calculated by applying the discounting rate fo the net balance
of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan assets, Such costs are included
in employee benefit expenses in the statement of Profit & Loss. Re-measurements gains
or losses arising from experience adjustments & changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediaftely in the period in which they occur directly in "other
comprehensive income" & are includedinretained earnings in the statement of changes
inequity & in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified fo profit or lossin
subseguent periods.

The Company recognises the following changesin the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit & loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains & losses
on curtailments & non-routine setflements;
. Net interest expense or income.

Lon: rm Employee Benefits:

Nehru Nagar,
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The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected fo be avdailed or
encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the vear, is treated as long term employee
penefits.

The Company's liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at balance sheet
date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
in the year in which they arise.

{iv) Refer note no. 30 below for disclosure.

Segment Reporting:

The Company has a single operating segment that is "Sale of Natural Gas”. Accordingly, the
segment revenue, segment results, segment assefs & segment liabilities are reflectedin the
Consolidated Financial Statements themselves as at & for the financial year ended March 31,
2020.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

Provisionisrecognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events &
it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation & inrespect of
which reliable estimates canbe made. A disclosure for contingent liabilityis made when there is
a possible obligationthat may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resourcesisremote, no provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognisedin the
financial statement.

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted fo reflect the
correctmanagement estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows:

Cash flows are reported using the indirectmethod, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or accruals of past
or fulure operating cash receipts or payments & item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date:

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance sheet date)
occurring after the balance sheet date are recognizedinthe Consclidated Financial Statements.
Material nen adjusting events (thaf are inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the
balance sheet date) occurring after the balance sheet date that represents material change &
commitment affecting the financial position are disclosedin the Directors’ Report.

Exceptional fems:

Certainoccasions, the size, type orincidence of an item ofincome or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item &
accordingly, disclosedinthe notes accompanying to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Dividends:

Final Dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the date of agpproval of the same by
Shareholders & interim dividend are recorded as liability on the date on declaration by
Company's board of Directors.

Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss [excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in a right issue, shares split & reserve share splits [consolidation of shares] that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change inresources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss [excluding other

A
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comprehensive income] for the year attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted forthe effects of all dilutive potentid
equity shares.

Financial instruments

A financial insfrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivafive coniracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts, cross currency interest rate
swaps, inferest rate swaps, currency options and embedded derivatives inthe host contract.

a. Financial Assets

Initial rec ognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognizedinitially at fair value (plus fransaction costs attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of financial assets are not recorded
at fair value through profit orloss).

Classifications

The company classifiesits financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized
cost or fair value depending on the company's business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assefts.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and
informationis provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financid
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the creditrisk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
period, for other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidityrisk and administrative casts), and
profitmargin.

In assessing whether the confractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the company considers the contfractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditiors
are met:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows.
- the confractual terms of the financial asset represents contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR meihod. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any disc ount or
premium on acquisitfion and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisationis included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognisedin the profit or loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditiors
are met:
- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest.
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On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an insfrument-by-
instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments, other than equity investment
which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognisedin other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive
income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income forinvestments inequity instruments which are not held for
trading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit orloss unless itis measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initid
recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financid
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in
statement of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investmentin subsidiaries, jointly controlled entifies and associates are measured at cost
lessimpairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Consolidated Financial Staterments.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost or amortised cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairmentloss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the company's
balance sheet] when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

-The company has transferreditsrights to receive cash flows from the assetor
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and
either [a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the company has neither tfransferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred confrol
of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered intfo a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the company continues to recognize the fransferred asset to the extent of the
company's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measuredon a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of considerationthat the company could be reguired o repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of
the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the considerationreceived (including any new assetobtained less any
new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
the OClisrecognisedin profitor loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FYOC| debt instruments on a forward-looking basis. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
creditfrisk.

with regard to frade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as
permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, whichrequires expectedlifetime losses
to be recognised from the initial recognition of the frade receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal
to the 12 month expected creditlosses or at an amount equal to the life time expected
credit losses if the credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly since initid
recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities
i. Initial recognitionand measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of amortised
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After the inifial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognisedin profit
orloss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amorfisation process.

Amortised costis calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded as finance
costsin the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial licbilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
frading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profitor loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasingin the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognisedinthe profif or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteriain the Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own creditrisk are recognizedin OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to the P&L. However, the Company may fransfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All the other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profitor loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged orcancelled or expire.

c. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the cash
7, H::!l' flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially
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different, then the contfractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a
new financial assetis recognised at fair value,

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially
different, then the modification does not resultin derecognition of the financial asset. In
this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a medificationis carried out because of financial
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. Inother cases, itis presented as interestincome. The gain / loss is recognisedin other
equity in case of fransaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of
transaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair value and the transaction
proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based on the underlying reason for
the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial liability when ifs terms are
modified, and the cash flows of the modifiedliability are substantially different. Inthis case,
a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference betweenthe carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is
recognisedin other equity in case of fransaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference Shares considering
the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further modified the estimates of future
cash flows.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"] notifies new standard or amendments fo the existing
standards. There is no such notificationwhich would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

Fair Value Measurements:

These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention,
except certain financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
financial instruments) as perrelevant applicable Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction fo sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence cf a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
mostadvantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fairvalue of an asset or a liakilityis measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assetinits highest & best
use or by sellingitto another market participant that would use the asset inits highest & best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances & for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs & minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets & liabilities for which fair value s
measured or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowestlevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

s Level 2— Volugtiontechnigues for which the lowestlevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurementis directly orindirectly observable

» Level 3— Valuationtechniques for which the lowestlevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurementis unobservable



For assets & liabilities that are recognisedin the Consolidated Financial Statements ona recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred betweenlLevels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowestlevelinput that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole| at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 March 2021

Financial instruments by category (carrying amount)

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

F

v

FVPL 0| Amortised cost Total Level 1 | Level2 level 3 Total

"
Financial assets
Investment 1,37,61,000 | - 6,40,04,000 7.77.67.000 - - 7.77.,67,000 7.77.,67.000
Trade receivables || 10.52,10,440 10,52,10,440 » 10.52,10.440 10.52,10,440
Cash & cash equivalents -] - 25,75.18,993 25.75,18,993 - - 25,75.18,993 25,75.18.993
OtherBank Balances - - 18,58.50,538 18,58,50,538 - - 18.58.30.007 18,58.50,538
Other financial assets - 2,58.48,944 2,58,68.946 - - 2,64.05.120 2.58.,68.946
Total financial assets 1,37,61,000 | - 63,84,54,917 65.22,15,917 - - 65,22,15,917 65,22,15,917
Financial ligbilities
Bomowings -1 - | 1.63.35.125%2 1,63,35.12.592 - -] 1.63.35.12.592 | 1.63,35.12.5%92
Trade payables - - 10,06.00.249 10,06,00,249 10,06,00,249 10,06,00,249
Otherfinancial iabilities - 34.05,36.856 34,05,36.854 - - 34,05.36.856 34,05.36.856
Total financial liabilities - | -] 2.07.46,49,697 2,07,46,49,6%97 - - | 2,07,46,49,697 | 2,07.46,49697
As at 31 March 2020 fFinancial instruments by category (carying amount) Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

F

FVPL o| Amortised Total borny | vl level 3 Total

c cost 1 2

|
Binancial assets
Investment 15,00,000 15,00,000 - - 15.00.000 15,00,000
Trade receivables - 4,21,53,585 4,21,53.585 - 4,21,53,585 4,21,53,585
Cash & cash equivalents 10,27.02,692 10.27.02,672 - - 10,27.02,692 10,27,02,692
Other Bank Balances 8,75.44,530 8.75,44,530 - - 8,75,44,530 8,75,44,530
Other financiol assets - 2,67.05,548 2,67,05.548 - - 2,467,05,548 2,67.05,548
Total financial assets - - 26,06,06,355 26,06,06,355 - 26,06,06,355 26,06,06,355
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,44,92,48,597 1.44,92 48 597 = - | 1,44,92,4B597 | 1,44.,92 48,597
Trade payables -1 - 7.21,01.254 7.21.01,254 - - 7,21,01,254 7.21,01.254
Otherfinancialliabilities - - 29,04,68.079 29,04,68,079 = 27.04,68.079 29.04.68,079

Total financial liabilities

1.81,18.17.930

1,81,18,17,930

1,81,18,17,230

1,81,18,17,930

224 The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless otherwise stated,
allamounts are in Indian Rupees.
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Unless otherwvise stated. all amounts are in Indian Rupees)

Note No. |Particulars as af March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
4 | " |
4A|Non Current
(i} |Unguoted Investment in Equity Instruments of Joint Confrol Entity [measured atf cost)
- 10.49,600 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each tully paid of Farm Gas Private limited 88.11.503 10.00.000
{3151 March, 2020: 1,00,000]
- 10,50.800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private limited 25,63,39% 5,00,000
[31st March, 2020: 50,000)
(i) jUriquoted Investment in Preference Shares of loint Cantrol Entity (measured af Fair Value)
- 15,920,000, 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of 1.59,00,000 -
Farm Gas Private limited  [31st March. 20200 Nil)
-27,10,200 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of 2.71,02,000 &
Venuka Palymers Private Limited (315t March, 2020: Nil)
6,13,76,902 15,00,000
4B|Current
vestment in Mutual Fund
- Union Hybrind Equily Fund - Growth (84584472 units of Rs. 10 each, Fair value as on 21,84,511 -
31.03.2021: Rs. 10.61 each)
- Unicn Medium Duration Fund- Growth (44847759 units of Rs. 10 each. Fair value as on 45,76,489 ]
31.03.2021: Rs. 10.2045 each)
1,37,61,000 -
5 Other financial asset- Non-current
Security Depasit
To Related Parties [Unsscured. considered good)] 4,38,600 428,600
To Oihers [Unsecured, considerad good] 59,43,023 1,20,57.059
Less: Allowance for bad and doubiiul - =
63,81,623 1,24,95,659
3 Other non- current assels
Capital advances [Unsecured, considered good) 35.77.500 -
Unamaortised axpenses - Borowing Cost under EIR 1.87.06,595 20398416
Advance payment of income fox 16.,08.44,468 6,98.04,766
Prepaid Expenses 4,28.24.703 4,47.29.307
22,60,23,466 13,49.32,689
7 {Inventories
MNatural Gas 20,64.640 18.68.615
Spares and Consumables 59.05.089 4976111
CNG Kits 78.345 1.04,460
(For Valuation- Refer note 2.10)
80,48,074 49.49.186
8 Current financial assels : Trade receivables
Secured, considerad good {secured against security deposits)) £.82.79.363 2.73.89 409
Unsecured, considered good (Others) 3.69.31.077 1.47.64.174
Less: Allowance for Bad and Doubtful # —
10,52,10,440 4,21,53,585
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Unlass otherwisa stated, all ameunts are in Indian Rupees)

Note No. |Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
i Cunrent financial assets
94A|Cash and cash equivalents
[a) Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 25.72,72.288 10.25.65.925
(b) Cash on hand 246,705 134767
98|Bank balances other than above
(a) N'Eﬂlgirl Maney depasits under lien against Bank Guarantee and/or Stand By Letter of 18.58.50.538 8.75.44.530
Credit {SBLC)*
*The Company hos issued Bank Guorantess and Stand-By Letter of Credit(38LC) te various
Govt, Agencies and other Suppliers during nommal course of business. Such Bank Guaraniees
and SBLC hove been issued against Margin Meney kept with bank in the form of Fixed
Deposits camying maturity of betwesn & months to 12 months.
44,23 69.531 19.02,47.222
10 Current financial assets : Others
Unbiled Revenue 66,46,408 48,13 674
Interest Recelvable 33,689 47,256
Depasit - Current 1,24,42,676 90,77,138
Imprest amount with Employess 3.64.550 271819
1,94,87.323 1.42,09,889
1 Other current assets
Advance lo Suppliers 1.04,08,080 3829317
Prepaid Expense 1,11,58,114 1,92.70,450
2,15.64.194 2,30,99.777
12 Share capital
Authorised :
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each 50.00.00,000 29.00.00.000
4,00.00.000 Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- Each 40,00,00,000 46,00,00.000
90.00.00.000 75,00,00,000
I d, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares :
Equity shares
2.89.99.471 [as al March 31. 2019 2,71,25,000], Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 28.99.94.710 27.12,50.000
Preference shares
10% Redeemable Preference Shares & =
3.49.99.432 [as at March 31, 2019 3.15.84,991] shares of Rs, 10/-each
28,99.94,710 27.12.50.000
A Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of outstanding Shares as af March 31, 2021 is as under:
1)|Equily Shares
Name No. of shares % of Holding
Cadila Pharmaceuticaks Lid 1,48,91,004 51.35%,)
Dr. Rajiv . Maodi {Trusfee of IRM Trust) 55,47.628 19.13%|
Enertech Distribution Management Pvl. Ltd. 85,60,839 29.52%
ii}|10% Nen Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares
Name No. of shares % of Holding
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 3,49,99,432 100%
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying noles to the C lidated Fi lal Stat: 1}

[Unless otherwise stated, all amaunts are in Indian Rupees)

Naote Ne. |Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020

B Terms and conditions:

(i}|Equity Shares:
a|Voting nghts:
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholders are enfilled

to one vote per share held.

b|Dividend:
The dividend provided, if any, by board of directors is subject to approval of sharehalders in Annual General Meeting,
except. in case of interim dividend. In the event of iquidation of the company, the equity shareholders shall be entitled

to proportionate share of their holding in the assets remaining atter distribution of all preferential amounts.

(ii)|Redeemable Non- Cumulative Preference Shares (RPS):

o|Redempiion terms;

The preference shares earries rademplion period of 10 yaars from the dale of issuance.

b|Dividend:

The dividend provided, if any, by board of directors is subject to approval of sharehalders in Annual General Meeting,
except, in case of interm dividend. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders shall be entitled

to proportionate share of their holding in the assels remaining after distribution of all preterential amounts.
G Receonciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars as al March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the peried 2,71,25,000 2,15,00.000
Add: Shares issued during the period 18,774,471 56,25,000
Shares oulstanding at the end of the period 2,89.99.471 2,71,25,000

Non Cumulative Reedemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as at March 31, 2020
Shares oulstanding at the beginning of the period 31584991 2,15,00.000
Add: Shares issued during the period 19.98.977 1,00.84.991
Shares ouistanding at the end of the period 3,3583,948 31584991

13 Reserves and surplus

A. Statement of profit and loss

Opening balance 28,45.31 421 11,51,76.343
Add: Transter from statement of profit and loss 34.88,90.120 21,06,59.903
Less: fems routed through SOCIE = 4,13.04.825
Closing balance 63 34,21 541 28453141

7. Heritage
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Accompanying notes fo the C lidated Fi ial Stat ts
{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Indian Rupees)
Note No. |Parficulars as at March 31, 2021 | as ot March 31, 2020
B. Equity Component of Preference Shares
i) OCCPS (Optionally Convertible Cumulative Freference Shares)
Opening 2.31.6M 231,601
Amount reclassified as Equity on conversion of OCCPS to Equity Shares - %
Equity Component- % Opflionally Converlible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- - ~
Each®
* The ditference between the fair value ol DCCPS shares.on the date of issue /
medificafion and the fransaction price is recognised as a deemed equity
component by the promoters. Estimation of fair value - For computalion of the
fair value benefit, the company has astimated the fair value of the financial
liability on the date of issue | madificalion by considering comporable market
interest rates adjusted to the facts and circumstances relevant to the comparny.
Closing Balance 2,31.600 231,601
il) Non C lative Reed ble Preference Shares
Opening 17,32,38.877 58.97.903
Equity Component of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 3.75.75.166 16,73,40,974
Closing Balance 21,08,14,043 17.32,38,877
Closing balance (i+ii) 21,10,45 644 17.34.70,478
C. ltems of OCI - Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net of lax effect
Opening (4.91.260) (93.207)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net of tax effect* (1.75:675) (3,98,053)
Closing balance (6.64,935) (4,91,260)
*Remeasurement ol defined benefit plans represents acturial gain and losses
and returns on plan assets [excluding intetest income).
D. Securities Premium
Opening Balance 1.85.74.149 -
Addition cunng the year 2.48.08.555 1,87.50.,000
Less: Stamp duty expense on shares (11,27 885) (1.75.851)
Closing Balance 4,22 54 819 1.85.74.14%
Total Reserves 88,60,55,049 47,63,43,889
14 Mon- current financial liabilities : Borrowings
14A|Non-Current
Secured (camied at amortized cost)$
Rupee Term loans from banks 1,41,47.49,697 1,29,43,39 479
Unsecured
Preference shares
bty component 10% Mon cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 16.70.68,821 1549.09.118
1.58,18,18,5%0 1.44,92,48,597
148 |Current
Secured (caried ot amortized cost)$
Rupee Term loans from banks#
Current Maturities of Rupee Term Loan from Banks 5.16,94.002 -
5,16,94,002 -
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the C lidated Fi lal Stat i
{Unlzss otherwiss stated. all amounts are in Indian Rupees)
Note No. |Particulars as at March 31, 2021 | as ot March 31, 2020
#|Details of Secured loans
From Banks
Particulars Terms of Repayment

Rupee Term loan: For project of City Gas Distribution of Bonaskantha and Fatehgarh Sahib

District ;
. 2 i : 40 i fall vis fr duly 2021
[consorfiur of banks: Corporation Bank, Onental Bank of Commerce, United Bank of India HeatStyinstolsnteRba bl

and Vijaya Bank)

15t Tranche: 20 quaterly insiallments from

Rupee Term loan: For project of City Gas Distribution of Diu and Gir Somnath District Apiil, 2023
([;::ns;r::g;gl;]:rks: Bank of Baroda, Orental Bank of Commerce, United Bank of India and 2nd Trariche: 20 quaterly instaliments from
L April, 2027
] tail ity cliv | 5 nder

The Rupee Term Laan s secured by Frst pari - passu charge on {a] the fixed assets (moveable, immovable and infangible assats| of the
Borrower, both present and future, with respect o the relevant project (o} the Trust and Retention Account except DSRA (c) the DSRA
crealed o meel the debt service requirements for the ensuing three months principal and interest paoyment due to the Lenders, on
exclusive basis and (d) the curent assels of the Bomower, both present and future,

There are no defaults in repayment of loan and inferest thereon as on March 31,2021 for all the loans under this head.

The book value of the fixed assets as on 31.03.2021 charged in favour of the lenders is Bs, 2.7%,14,21,113/- [incl CWIP) [Previous year: Rs
2,22.30.66,659)

For security details on bank financing {working capital and PBG), refer note 35 and 34,

15 Current financial liabilities : Trade payables
Total eutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises:-
Trade payables - Others 1,12.14,026 2.42.03.403

(Refar note 41)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises:-

Trode payables - Gas Purchase [ Transmission 484,27 506 2.14,08 482
Trade payables - Relaled parfies 44,088 121,643,529
Trade payables - Others 4,09,14.629 1,43,25,440

10,06,00,249 721,001,254

16 Other financial liabilities
16A|Non-Current

Cuslomer Security Deposit 14,30,77,292 7.B2.24 644
Lease Labilities 56227918 4.35.66.846
19.93.05.210 12,17.91,492

16B|Current
Creditors for Capital Goads 11,72,41,381 13.67,78.787
Others payable 2,39.90.265 3,18.97.800
14,12,31.646 16,86,76,587

17 Pravisions
17A|Non-Current

Provision for Employee Benefifs 70,03,574 39.52,373
70.03,574 39.52,373

17B|Current
Provision for Employee Benelits 1.09.646 41,957
1,09,646 41,957

18 Cunrent liabilities : Others
Statutory dues payable 2.97.23.686 1,64,12,520
2,97,23,686 1,64,12,520

19 Deferred Tax Liabilities (nef)

Deferred lax iabilifies {Net) 2,35.74.951 7.38.52.112
(Refer note 35)

9,35,76,951 7,38,52,112
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IRM ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the Censolidated Financial Statements
(Unless clherwise stoted, ol amounts are in Indian Rupees)

Note Particul For the year ending | For the year ending
No. | ameviars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

20 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Goods

CNG Sales (Gross of Taxes) 1,63,61,11,492 1,47.37.94,434
PNG Sales 44,09,23,493 170632714
Sale of Sevices
Connection Income 1.35,39,995 105,471,536
Other Operating Revenues 75,113,711 16.01,351
2,11,80,88,691 1,65,65,70,235
21 Other Non-operaling Income
Gain on remesurement of financial Assets 3,046,874 -
Interest Income 70,246,230 46,53,141
73,33,104 46,93,141
22 Cost of Natural Gas and other Operating Cosl
Natural Gas 77.08,55.375 &7.76,03,134
HCV Transportalion Cost 13.08,21,601 8,71,95,830
CHNG Station Electricity Cosl 5.31,83,530 4,46,19.543
CHNG Kits 26,115 1.04,460
C&M Spares and Consumables 65,79,608 12,56,010
DAM Cost 7.79.29.414 5,20,44,936
1,03,93,95,643 84,28,23.913

23 Changes in inventaries of Natural Gas
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress - Natural Gas

Inventary af the beginning of the year 18,468,615 13,73,032
Less! Inventory al the end of the year 20,644,640 18,648,415
(1,76,025) (4,95,583)
24 Employee Benefils Expense
Solaries, wages and bonus 3,55,25.064 2,97.38.761
Comparny's contribution lo provident & ofher funds 18,92,218 13,583,994
Leave Encashmen! and Gratuity (Refer nole 30| 30,17,12% 16,683,960
Staff welfare expenses 6,73,304 16,112,245
4,11,07,717 3,43,68,962
25 Finance Costs
Bank Charges 1,62,153 291,709
Other Finance Charges 276,146,973 1.44631.471
Interest Cos! 10,70,58,76% 6.38,04.749
Unwinding of Interest Cosl- Sacurity Depaosil 18,34,404 11,30,797
Unwinding of Interest Cost- Lease 45,96,909 38,66,593
Interest Cost- Prefererice Shares- IndAS impact 1,55.90,529 1,18,46,252
Ameortisafion of Transaction cost of borowings 16,92,021 10,87.015
15,85,51,758 9.66,58,586
24 Depreciation and Amertisation expense
Depreciation of tangible assets [refer note 3.1 10,72,98,031 8.07,36.315
Amortisation of infangible assets (refer note 3.3) 1,27,03,024 1,10,4%.400
12,00,01,055 9.18,05,715
27 Other Expenses
Adverlisement and Markesting Expenses 43,29,707 44,12 597
Statutory Audit Fees 12,648,500 §,85,000
Business Promotion Expenses 21,42,434 2494378
Corpaorate Sacial Responsibility Expense 34,00,000 21,72,550
(refer note 40)
Director’s Sitting Fees 18.00.000 22.40.000
Insurance Cost 49,78,072 30.44,334
Legal and Professional Charges 92,86,712 2,38.40,452
Manageriial Remuneration 74,771,729 88,14, 684
Rent 17.93,103 11.07,758
Stamp Duly Expense 94,09,200 42,15,105
Securty Expense 44,31,194 4147968
Tender Fees - 5,62,360
Traveling, Lodging and Boarding 28,82,990 47,78,410
Vehicle Hire Charges 91,49,034 75.20.514
Other Expenses 2,09.07,477 1,15,73.546
B,32,50,852 8,18,07,656
28 Tax Expense
Corporate Tax- Current 8,81.,00,000 4,26,03,832
Corporate Tax- Previous year 17,864,430 -
Defarred Tax 1.97.24,83% 5.96.17.521

(Refer note 38)

10,96,11,269 10,22,21,352
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29.

Financial risk management:

The Companies activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk & market risk. This note explains the
sources of risk which the entity is exposed to & how the entity manages the risk & the related
impactin the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Companies risk management is done in
close co-ordination with the board of directors & focuses on actively securing the Companies
short, medium & long-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial markets.
Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The Company does
not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write
options. The most significant financial risks fo which the Company is exposed are described
below:

(i) editri

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their
obligations as agreed. The Company is exposed to creditrisk from frade receivables, bank
deposits & other financial assets.

Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence, there is no
significant creditrisk on such fixed deposits.

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party, taking into
account the financial condition, current econcmic trends, & analysis of historical bad debts
& ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set accordingly.

The Company frades with recognized & credit worthy third parties. Itis the Companies policy
that all customers who wish to frade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored onan on-going basis with
the result that the Companies exposure to bad debts isnot significant.

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for mgjor
clients. In addition. a large number of minor receivables are grouped info homogenous
groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculationis based on exchange losses
historical data. Also, the Company does not enter into sales transaction with customers

having credit loss history.

There are no significant credit risks with related parties of the Company. Adequate expected
creditlosses are recognized as per the assessments.

The history of frade receivables shows no allowance forbad & doubiful debts.

Ageing of Trade Days
TOTAL
Receivables 0-180 180-365 |  Above 365
As at 31 March 2021 10.52,10,440 - = 10,52,10,440
As at 31 March 2020 4,21,53,585 - & 4,21,53,585
(i) Liguidityrisk:

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able fo settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. For the Company. liguidity risk arises from
obligations on account of financial liabilities — borrowings, trade payables & other financia
liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the cash flow
that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the working capital is
sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The
Company closely manitors its liquidity position & maintains adequate source of funding.

{iii) Maturities of financial ligbilities:

The tables below analyse the Companies financial liabilities info relevant maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosedin the fable are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

:ﬂ, ~ Chambers,
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As at 31 On & mths or 6-12 More than 5
March, 2021 demand less mths liZps EeRye yrs
Bomowings
(otherthan
redeemable ) 1,72,.31,334 | 3,44,62,668 | 6,89,25336 | 39,73.68.872 94,84,35,492
preference
shares)

Redeemable
preference = = = = - 16,70,68,891
shares

Trade payables - | 10.,06.00,24% - - - =

OtherCument 2,97,23,686
Liabilities

%Q”%’ig*;“”d“' 28,74,17,508 | 3108570 | 1893558 | 6833430 | 41283791

TOTAL - | 43,49,72,777 | 3,75,71,237 | 7,08,18,894 | 404222302 | 1,15,47,88,174

GRAND TOTAL 2,10,43,73,383

As at 31¢ On & mths or 6-12 1-2 yrs 2-5yrs | Morethan 5
March, 2020 demand less mths yrs
Bormowings - - - | 5.02,45,619 | 32,79,19.010 91.61,74,850
(otherthan

redeemable

preference
shares)

3.73,32,820 = 11,75,76,298

Redeemable
preference
shares

Trade - 7,21,01,254 - = = E
payables

Other Cument - 1,64,12,520
Liabilities

Otherfinancial - 15,86,76,587 | 1,48,07.681 37,758,571 52,65,380 10,79,42,8460
liabilities

TOTAL - 24,71,90,361 | 1,48,07,681 | 9,13,54,010 | 33,31.84,390 | 1,14,16,94,008

GRAND TOTAL 1,82,82,30,450

(iv) Market risk:
Markef risk is the risk that changes in market prices—such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates & equity prices — will affect the Companies income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

(v)] Foreignexchange risk:

The Company is not directly exposed to foreign exchange risk as no direct foreigncurrency
transactions are entered into.

(vi) InterestRate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interestraftes. The Companies exposure fo the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Companies long-term debt
obligafions with floating interestrates.

The Companiesinvestmentsinfixed deposits are at fixedinterestrates.

The exposure of the Companies borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the
reporting period are s follows:

7, Heritagae
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As at 31 As at 315

Pariciians March, 2021 | March, 2020
Variable rate instruments

Eirichcial Aseats 2,58,68,9446 2,67,05,548

Firigrcial Liskilitias 1,46,64,43,701 | 1.29,43,39,479
Fixed Rate instruments

Financial Assets ) E

Financial Liabilities 36.63.74,101 15.49,09.118
Interestrafe variation Change Impact Impack

sEEmn (+) 0.50% 72,02,874 43,38,170

Seetidiad (-) 0.50% (72,02,874) (63.38.170)

30. Employee Benefits:

(i)

(it)

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefitssuch as Salaries, incentives & allowances,
short terms compensated absences, etc.. & the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are
recognisedin the year in which the employee renders the related service.

Long term employee benefits

(a) Gratuity ([Unfunded):

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972.Employees who are incontinuous service foraperiod of 5 years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/terminationis the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded

plan.

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 315t ended 315t
March, 2021 March, 2020

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of

Projected Benefit Obligation:

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 21,26,579 9.52,782

the Period

Interest Cost 1,46,096 74,126

Current Service Cost 9,08,310 542,174

Past Service Cost

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Qut/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)

(Benefit Paid Directlyby the Employer)

(Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The EffectOf Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

7, Heritaga
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Particulars

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2020

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Financial Assumptions

(56,409)

3,27,002

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due fo
Experience

7,23.344

2,30,495

Present Value of Benefit Obligation af the End of the
Period

38,47,920

21,26,579

Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period

Interest Income

Contributions by the Employer

Expected Confributions by the Employees

Assels Transferred In/Acquisitions

(Assets Transferred Qut/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

(Assets Distributed on Settlements)

Effects of AssetCeiling

The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interestincome

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
Period)

(38.,47.,920)

(21,26,579)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))

(38.47,920

(21,26,579)

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet

(38,47,920)

(21,26,579)

Expenses Recognizedin the Statement of Profit or Loss
for Current Period:

Current Service Cost

2.08,310

542,174

Net Interest Cost

146,096

74,126

Past Service Cost

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Expenses Recognized

10,54,406

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) for Current Period:

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period

666,935

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income

Change in Assel Ceiling

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in
OCl
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Particulars Fortheyear | Fortheyear
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2021 | March, 2020
Balance Sheet Reconciliation:
Opening Net Liability 21,26,579 2.,52,782
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 10,54,406 6,16,300
Expenses Recognized in OCI 666,935 557 497
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In - -
Net [Liability)/Asset Transfer Out - -
[Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - =
[Employer's Contribution) - -
Net Liability/(Asset] Recognized in the Balance Sheet 3,847,920 21,26,579
Assumptions:
No of Active Members 94 69
Per Month Salary For Active Members 23.13.200 16,20,661
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 20 21
Obligation
Average Expected Future Service 22 23
Projected Benefit Obligation (PRQ) 38.47.920 21,286,579
Rate of Discounting 6.95% 6.87%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Indian
Assured Lives Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - -
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the
Employer:
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Yecirs From the
Date of Reporting
15t Following Year 40,275 2,948
2nd Following Year 57,074 25,604
3rd Following Year 71,804 36,451
4th Following Year 92,094 45948
5th Following Year 1,02,695 56,523
Sum of Years 6To 10 606,107 333,071
Sum of Years 11 & above 1,59,39,378 89.98,750
Sensitivity Analysis:
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 38,47,920 21,26,579
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (6,.24,523) (3,55,778)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 7.86,828 4,49,748
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 7.48,034 4,44,443
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (6,.29,505) (3,58.375)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee (50,221) (46,860)
Turnover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 51,838 48.664

Turnover
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()

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual
change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occurin isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the
projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in
calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognisedin the balance sheet.

Leave Encashment {unfunded);

The employees of the company are entifled to leave as per the leave policy of the
company. The liability on account of cccumulated leave as on last day of the
accounting year is recognised [net of the fair value of plan assets as at the balance
sheetdate] at present value of the defined obligation af the balance sheet date based
on the actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using projected unit
creditmethod.

Particulars

For the year
ended 315!
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31¢t
March, 2020

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation af the Beginning of
the Period

18,67,750

9.53.830

Interest Cost

1,28314

74,208

Current Service Cost

5.80.067

3,57.387

Past Service Cost- Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During
the Period

Past Service Cost- Vested BenefitIncurred During the
Period

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)

(1,33,740)

(Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due o
Change in Financial Assumptions

(46,221)

2,74,643

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Experience

8,09.303

3.41,422

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the
Period

32,65,300

18,67,750

Change in the fair value of plan assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period

Interest income

Confributions by the Employer
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Particulars

For the year
ended 31st
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31+
March, 2020

Expected Contributions by the Employees

Assets Transferred In/A cquisitions

(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

(Assets Distributed on Seftlements)

Effects of Asset Ceiling

The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Fair Value of Plan Assetsat the End of the Period

Amount Recognizedin the Balance Sheet

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
Period)

(32,65,300)

(18,67,750)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))

(32.65,300)

(18.67,750)

Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the
Period

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

(32,65,300)

(18,67,750)

Expenses / [Incomes] recognised in the Statement of
Profit & Loss:

Current Service Cost

580,067

3,567,387

Net Interest Cost

1.28,314

74,208

Actuarial (Cains)/Losses

7.63,082

6,16,065

Past Service Caost- Non-Vested Benefit Recognized
During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During
the Period

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

[Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Change in AssetCeiling

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

14,71,463

10,47.,660

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liability

18.67.750

9.53.830

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profitor Loss

14,71,463

10,47.660

Net Liability/{Asset) Transfer In

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out

(73213)

(1.33.740)

(Employer's Contribution)

Net Liability/[Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

32,65,300

18.67.750

Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet
date:

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Rate of Discounting #

6.95%

687%

Rate of Salary Increase §

7.00%

7.00%

Rate of Employee Turncver

2.00%

2.00%

No of Active Members

94

69

Per Month Salary For Active Members

23,13,900

16,20,661

Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO)

32,65,300

Prescribed Confribution For Next Year (12 Months)

57,750
¢
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31.

32.

#The rafe of discount is considered based on market yield on Governmen! Bonds having curency & terms in
consistence with the currency & terms of the post-employment bensfit abligations.

$ The estimates of future salary increases are considered in actuarial valuation, taking inta account inflafion,
seniority, promotion & ctherrelevant tactors such as supply & demand in the employment market.

Capital Management:

The company objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a
going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders & benefits for other
stakeholders, & maintain an optimal structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Net Debt = Total term loan borrowings less cash & cash equivalents including current investments

Total 'equity’ means share capital issued (Equity Shares & Preference Shares) & accumulated
reserves.

As at 315t As at 31!
Particulars March, 2021 March, 2020
Total borrowings 1,46,64,43,701 | 1,29,43,39,479
Less:cash & cash equivalents & Balance with Banks 44.33,69,531 19,02,47,222
Net debt 1,02,30,74,170 | 1,10,40,92,257
Total equity 1.31,76,27.552 88,99.73,321
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.78 1.24

Loan Covenants:

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company isrequired to complyany 2 of the
following financial covenants failing which penal interest as prescribedin the facility agreement

shall apply. The Financial Covenants shall be tested af the end of each Fiscal Year based on the
cerfification of the Auditor.

a) Gross DSCR-1.10
b) Interest Coverage ratio- 1.25

c) FACR = [Net Property, Plant and Equipment/ Loan Qutstanding)- 1.25

The first testing of financial covenants will be done for the first full operational year post the
commencement of commercial operations of the Project, i.e. based on audited financials for
Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2023.

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

The following table summarises the financial information of Farm Gas Private Limited and Venuka
Polymers Private Limited as includedinits own separate financial statements, adjusted for fair value
adjustments at acquisition and differencesin accounting policies. if any. The table also reconciles
the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Company's interestin both the
entities.

Farm Gas Venuka
Particulars Private Polymers Pvt
Limited Ltd

Year 2020-21 2020-21
Country of Incorporation India India
% of ownershipinterest 50% 50%
Current Assets 5,66,91,738 4,83,06,296
Non Current Assets 6,02,58815 8,53,32,341
Current Llcbm-hes“ . /_G:\ 34,27,548 2,62,68037
Non Current Liabilities G?H$\ 9,59,00,000 8,82,43,804
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Net assets (100%) 1,76,23,005 1.91,26,796
Company's share of net assets 88,11,502.50 95.63,398
Carrying amount of interestin joint venture 88,11,502.50 95,63,398
Operational Revenue (5.084) -
Expenses 10,82,740 2,47 ,834
Depreciationand Amortization - 27,027
Interestincome - (1.09,695)
Interest Expense 9,03,197 9.64,196
Income Tax Expense (1,74,438) (67.794)
Profit/(loss) from confinuing operations (18,06,414) (10,61,568)
Other Comprehensive Income G -
Total Comprehensive Income - -
Company’s share of profit/ (loss) from continuing 903207 530784
operations ’
Company's share of othercomprehensive income - -
Company's share of totalcomprehensive income - -
Dividends received by the Company - -
33. Related Party Disclosures:

(@) Name of the Related party & Nature of the Related Party Relationship:

Sr. No. | Nature Name of the Person/Entity

i Holding Company (i) Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid

ii. Joint Control entities (i) Farm Gas Private Limited

(i) Venuka Polymers Private Limited
il Associafe Enterprise (i) Enertech Distribution Management
Pvt Ltd
(i) Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvt Lid
iv. Fellow Subsidiary Company (il Casil Healith Products Limited
v, Enterprises Significantly Influenced by | (i) IRM Pvi Lid

Directors or their relafives or Key | (i) IRM Enterprise Pvt Lid

Management Personnel (iii) Sanguine Management Services Pvt
Ltd

(iv) IRM Trust

(v) Maukiika Ventures LLP

(vi) Shree Saraswati Education Sansthan
(Indrashil University)

[viilN. M Sadguru Water and
Development Foundation

vi. Key Management Personnel (i)  Mr. Maheswar Sahu (Chairman)

(i) Dr. Rajiv I. Modi [Director)

(iii) Mr. Amitabha Banerjee (Director)

(iv) Mr. Vinod Jain (Director)

(v] Mr. Badri Mahapatra (Director)

(vi) Mr. Karan Kaushal (CEQ)

(vii) Mr. Harshal Anjaria (CFQ)

(viii) Ms. Shikha Jain (CS)
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(b) Iransactions with related parties (Amt. in Rs.};

Sr. Nature of | Name of the Related Party For the For the year
No. Transaction year 2019-20
2020-21
i. For Goods Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 13,01,900 1,43.64,191
Procured/Servic
s Aodiad IRM Trust 31,05.288 31,05,288
Venuka Polymers Pvt Ltd (43,200) (14,400)
Sanguine Management Services - 23,60,000
Pvt Ltd
Enerfech Fuel Solutions Pvt Ltd 4,27,56,890 1,87.,61.328
Casil Health Products Ltd 1,12,171 32,623
IRM Entferprise Pvt Ltd = 1,180
IRM Pvt Ltd 1,47.,588 4,83.066
il Reimbursement | Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid {40,270) -
f Ex|
i Maheswar Sahu 10,535 12,193
Venuka Polymers Pvt Ltd (36,28,412) (11,80,031)
Mauktia Ventures LLP (1.215) (42,270)
Farm Gas Pvt Lid (17,11,828) (10,05,463)
IRM Trust (2.65,800) (5,89.747)
iil. Subscription of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 2,46,37,728 3.82,50,000
Equity Shares
fincl. securities IRM Trust 91,78.763 1,42,50,000
premium] Enertech Distribution 97.36.774 | 2,25,00,000
Management Pvt Lid
iv. Subscription of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 3.41,44,410 [ 11,99,74910
Preference
Shares
V. Director Sitting Maheswar Sahu 6,80,000 11.60,000
Fees Badri Mahapalra 2,00,000 8,40,000
vi. Managerial Maheswar Sahu 46,43,378 45,98,023
Commission
wii. Managerial Key Management Personnel 28.28,351 42,16,661
Remuneration [Mr. Karan Kaushal, Mr. Harshal
Anjaria and Ms. Shikha Jain)
viii. Corporate Shree Saraswati Education 20,00,000 21,72,550
Social Sansthan (Indrashil University)
Responsibility
Expense N M Sadguru Water and
Development Foundation 3,00,000 E
ix. Qutstanding IRM Pvt Ltd 17,472 37.904
Payabl
HERER Casil Health Products Ltd 26,816 3,108
IRM Trust 17.472 1.34.516
Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvt Ltd - 12,33,044
IRM Enterprise Pvt Ltd - 1,180
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd - 1,19,88,000
X Outstanding IRM Trust 4,38,600 4,38,600
Receivablas
e Venuka Polymers Pyt Ltd 13703215 | 11,97,023
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 49 970 -
Mauktika Ventures LLP 44,185 42,270
Farm Gas Pvt Lid 17,11,828 10,05,463
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34. Earnings PerShare:
Sr. Particulars uom For the year For the year
No. 2020-21 201%-20
Basic EPS
a | Profit after tax affributable to Equity Rs. 34,88,90,117 21,06.59,903
Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average number of Nos, 2,81,61,027 2,44,85,400
Equity shares outstanding during the
year
c | Value of equity share Rs. 12.38 8.60
Diluted EPS
a | Profitafter tax attributable to Equity Rs. 34,880,117 21,06,59,903
Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average number of Nos. 2.81,61,027 2,44.85,400
Equity shares outstanding during the
year
c | Value of equity share Rs. 12.387 B.60
35. Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for):
iy Commitments
Sr. No. | Particulars For the year For the year
2020-21 2019-20
| Estimated amount of confracts 49,91.87,141 49,22,52,256

remaining to be executed on capital
account & not provided for (Net of
advance)

li} The Company has issued Corporate Bank Guarantee for Loan taken by its Joint control Enfities as
per belowinformation-

a. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Banks fowards Loan taken by Farm gas Privale
Limited amounting to Rs. 33,54,00,000.

b. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Bank towards Loan taken by Venuka Polymers
Private Limited amountfing fo Rs. 17,16,00,000

(i) The Company has executed long term supply contracts for natural gas having take or pay(ToP)
obligations. The volume committed under such contract whichis liable to TOP is 3202 mmbtu/day.
The Company is not foreseeing ToP liability under the long term contracts.

(iv) Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Pefroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB)
for the geographical areas of Diu (UT of Diu & Daman) & Gir Somnath District (Gujarat), the
Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 crores to PNGRB.

36. The Company has taken working capital facilifies from Banks which is secured as under:

a. Second charge on enfire movable & immovable assets (both present & future) of the

Company.
b. First charge on current assefs of the Company & TRA account (both present & future) on
pari passu basis to be shared with Term Loan lenders.

37. The Company has taken limits of Rs. 25 crores (non fund based) forissuance of PBG in favour of
PNGRB w.r.t CGD of Diu and GirSomnath GA, The said limits is secured as under-

a. Firstcharge (pari passu basis) on current assefs, cash flow (incl TRA account), receivables
(both present & future) arising out of the project of Diu & GirSomnath.

b. First charge on entire movable & immovable assets (incl infangible assets, goodwill,
uncalled capital, intellectual property) of the project of Diu & Gir Somnath (both present
& future).
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38. Deferred Tax Assets/(liabllities):
(a) Breakup of Deferred Tax Liabilities & Assets into major components of the respective balances cre
as under:
Particulars As at Change during As at
01.04.2020 the year 31.03.2021

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 8,568,23,259 2,36,96,656 10,9519.715
(a) 8,58,23,259 2,36,96.656 109519915

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Retirement Benefits 10,05,373 7.85,024 17.20,397

Ind AS Adjustment 1,09,65,775 31,86,792 1.41,52,567
(b) 1.19.71,148 39.71.816 1,59,42,964

Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets 7.38,52,111 1,97,24,839 9.35,76,950

(b) The Net Deferred Tax Liability of Rs. 1,97,24,83% [Previous Year: Rs. 596,17.521 [Deferred Tax
liabilities)] for the year has been providedin the Statement of Profit & Loss.

39. Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee has been formedby the Company. The CSR activities of the Company are generally
been carried out by making payment confribution to eligible Trusts. The Trusts earry out the CSR
activities as specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 on behalf of the Company.
During the year, Company was required to spend CSR expense of Rs. 30,89,241 (for March 31,
2020:Rs. 926,071) as per the requirements of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & has spent
for the year 34,00,000(for March 31, 2020: Rs. 21,72,550).

Sr. No | Particulars Amount Amount yet to Total Rs.
Contributed be contributed
] Construction/Acquisition of 20,00,000 - 20,00,000
cny Assets
2 On purposes other than a 14,00,000 - 14,00,000
above
TOTAL 34,00,000 - 34,00,000
40. Payments to auditor (included in Other expensesunder note 27):
Particulars During the year During the year
2020-21 2019-20
For Statutory Audit (Incl GST) 12,68,500 8.85,000
For GST & Tax Audit (Incl GST) 3.05,620 2,46,620
For Cerfification & other reimbursements (incl. GST) 1,91.160 14,750
41. Management has assessed fhe sifuation of Covid-19 based on the Internal and external

information available up to the date of approval of these financial results by the Board of Directors.
Management believes that the Impact of Covid-19 onits business, assets, infernal financial controls,
profitability and liquidity, both present and future, would be limited and there Is no indication of
any material Impact on the carrying amounts of Deferred tax assets, Property, Plant & Equipment,
frade receivables and cther financial assets or any adverse impact on ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. Considering the uncertainties prevailing inthe economic conditiors
globallyand in India, the eventual cutcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from those-estimated as on the date of approval of these financial results and the
Company will closely monitor any material changes to the economic environment and their
Impact onits business in the times to come.
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42. Disclosure requiredunder micro,small & medium enterprises developmentact, 2006 (the act) are
as follows:

Sr. No | Particulars As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

] Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as
at the end of the accounting year

a | Trade Payables 31,58276 10,71,962
b | Payables for purchase of property, plant & equioment 80.,55.750 | 2.31,31,641
2 Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier = =

as at the end of the accounting year

3 The amount of interest paid by the company in ferms - -
of section 16 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplierbeyond the appointed
day during the accounting year

4 The amount of interest due & payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

N The amount of interest accrued & remaining unpaid at - -
the end of the accounfing year

é The amount of further interest remaining due & = -
payable evenin the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The above information regarding Micro enterprises & Small enterprises has been determined
based on information available withthe company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Associates For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistrationNo: 106625W

p lfhal\'!\;lli- o\ W~ ll{,amuu

Nehru Nlﬁ;f- i gt
1 Ambawadi 1,
Harsh Kejriwal B\ camedsret 15, M./Sahu Vinod Jain
Partner Chairntan Director
Membership Number: 1284670 =
Ahmedabad, Dated: 22nd June, 262 W e A-jg
Karan Kaushal Harshal Anjaria
G & CFO
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Company Secretary
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